)( NORTH AREA COMMITTEE

To:

Public Document Pack

\ &

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA

City Councillors: Todd-Jones (Chair), Price (Vice-Chair), Ward, Abbott,
Boyce, Bird, Brierley, Gawthrope, Kerr, O'Reilly, Pitt and Tunnacliffe

County Councillors: Manning, Onasanya, Sales and Scultt

Dispatched: Wednesday, 24 July 2013

Date: Thursday, 1 August 2013

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Manor Community College, 101a Arbury Road, Cambridge CB4 2JF
Contact: Glenn Burgess Direct Dial: 01223 457013

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 7PM

2 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

(INCLUDING DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST)

‘YOU SAID, WE DID, YOU WANT TO KNOW’

TO CONFIRM WHAT WAS SAID (MINUTES) AT THE LAST
MEETING AND WHAT WE HAVE DONE (ACTION LIST)
(Pages 5 - 14)

YOU WANT TO KNOW (OPEN FORUM) 7.05PM



ITEMS FOR DECISION

5 DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS AND DEVOLVED
DECISION MAKING - FIRST ROUND PRIORITY-SETTING
FOR PLAY AREA IMPROVEMENT (Pages 15 - 48)

7.35PM
6 PROPOSED CAPITAL GRANT TO THE SIKH GURDWARA
IN KINGS HEDGES (Pages 49 - 58)
7.50PM
7 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME
(Pages 59 - 94)
8.05PM

COMMUNITY FORUM - JOIN IN THE DISCUSSION ABOUT THESE ITEMS

8 CAMBRIDGE 20MPH PROJECT - PHASE 1
CONSULTATION REPORT (Pages 95 - 126)

8.30PM - 9.30PM



Public
Participation

Filming,
recording
and
photography

Meeting Information

Speaking on Planning Applications to other
rules. Guidance for speaking on these issues
can be obtained from Democratic Services
on 01223 457013 or
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

Further information about speaking at a City
Council meeting can be found at;

https://www.cambridge.qov.uk/speaking-at-
committee-meetings

Cambridge City Council would value your
assistance in improving the public speaking
process of committee meetings. If you any
have any feedback please contact
Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

The Council is committed to being open and
transparent in the way it conducts its
decision-making. Recording is permitted at
council meetings, which are open to the
public. The Council understands that some
members of the public attending its meetings
may not wish to be recorded. The Chair of
the meeting will facilitate by ensuring that
any such request not to be recorded is
respected by those doing the recording.

Full details of the City Council’s protocol on
audio/visual recording and photography at
meetings can be accessed via:

http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ecSDDis

play.aspx?NAME=SD1057&ID=1057&RPID=
42096147&sch=doc&cat=13203&path=1302

0%2c13203




Fire Alarm

Facilities for
disabled
people

Queries on

reports

General
Information

In the event of the fire alarm sounding
please follow the instructions of Cambridge
City Council staff.

Level access is available at all Area
Committee Venues.

A loop system is available on request.

Meeting papers are available in large print
and other formats on request prior to the
meeting.

For further assistance please contact
Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or
democratic.services@cambridge.qov.uk.

If you have a question or query regarding a
committee report please contact the officer
listed at the end of relevant report or
Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.

Information regarding committees, councilors
and the democratic process is available at
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/




North Area Committee Thursday, 16 May 2013

NORTH AREA COMMITTEE 16 May 2013
8.00pm -10.00 pm

Present: Councillors Todd-Jones (Chair), Price (Vice-Chair), Abbott, Boyce,
Bird, Brierley, Kerr, O'Reilly, Pitt, Tunnacliffe, Manning and Sales and Ward

County Councillors: Councillors Manning, Onasanya, Sales and Scultt

Officer Present:

Urban Growth Manager: Tim Wetherfield

Head of Community Development: Trevor Woolams
Asset Manager: Alistair Wilson

Area Manager (Traffic): John Harris (County Council)
Capital and Funding Manager: Daniel Clarke (County Council)
Cycling Projects Team Leader: Mike Davies (County Council)

Other Present:
Neighbourhood Policing Sergeant: Jason Wragg
Community Fire Officer: Jim Meikle

| FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL

13/40/NAC Apologies for absence

Apologies were received from City Councillor Gawthrope.

13/41/NAC Welcome and Introduction (including Declarations of Interest)

The Chair welcomed the public and explained the format of the meeting.

Page 5



North Area Committee NAC/2 Thursday, 16 May 2013

13/42/INAC TO CONFIRM WHAT WAS SAID (MINUTES) AT THE LAST
MEETING AND WHAT WE HAVE DONE (ACTION LIST)

Action List

Street Lighting Programme: Councillor Bird confirmed that she had still not
received a written response to her question. Councillor Manning confirmed that
he had followed this up, but unfortunately Councillor Orgee was no longer the
relevant Cabinet Member.

The minutes of the 16 May 2013 meeting were approved and signed as a
correct record.

13/43/NAC YOU WANT TO KNOW (OPEN FORUM)

1) Mr Bond: Raised concern about the poor state of the zebra crossing in
Chesterton High Street. He felt it was a hazard to older people and that it
should be repaired.

Councillor Manning agreed to look into the issue and report back to a future
meeting.

2) Ms Dockerill: Requested that Ward Councillors work more in their
local communities.

Councillor Price confirmed that Kings Hedges Councillors were very active in
the community and had recently been undertaking a survey throughout the
area. Councillor contact details were widely available on the City Council’s
website and he encouraged members of the public to contact them direct with
any questions or concerns.

3) Ms Harris: Raised concern about the damaged speed cushions on
Campkin Road.

Councillor Onasanya confirmed that she had reported this issue and that the
speed cushions would be repaired within the next 12 weeks.

4) Ms Johnson: On behalf of local residents, thanked the City Council for
the recently planted trees but asked when a decision on the grass verges
would be taken. Also raised the issue of anti-social cycling in Metcalf and
Gilbert Road.

Page 6



North Area Committee NAC/3 Thursday, 16 May 2013

Councillor Scutt confirmed that discussions were ongoing with officers and that
she would report back at a future meeting.

Police Sergeant Wragg confirmed that the Police were looking at anti-social
cycling in this area and were working with cycling campaigners and Councillor
Manning to address the issue. The Police were also speaking with local
schools.

Councillor Tunnacliffe confirmed that he was in discussion with Ms Johnson
regarding the verges and that 2 additional street lights had been secured to
make Metcalf Way safer.

5) Resident: Raised concern regarding the £400,000 being spent on the
20mph project and questioned the demographics of those who had
expressed support for the scheme.

Councillor Todd-Jones confirmed that the full consultation would run until 5
July and be reported back to the North Area Committee on 1 August.

Councillor Ward confirmed that 600 responses had been received to date with
around 60% expressing support for the scheme. It was also noted that he
would be discussing with officers a process for ‘individual’ consultation
responses and not just 1 per household.

Mr Bond noted that at a recent workshop he had been presented with lots of
new data that seemed to prove the benefits of a 20mph scheme.

Councillor Scutt also highlighted the interesting data that was currently being
released regarding 20mph schemes.

6) Resident: Highlighted that Milton Road School had been missed of the
20mph map.

Councillor Ward noted this comment.

Page 7



North Area Committee NAC/4 Thursday, 16 May 2013

13/44/NAC Policing and Safer Neighbourhoods

The committee received a verbal update from the Neighbourhood Policing
Sergeant and the Community Fire Officer on crime and policing in the four
wards.

1) Councillor Manning: Suggested that as part of future reports the
Police could highlight additional ‘root causes’ of issues. This would
allow the Area Committee to take away and progress issues that were
not directly under the control of the Police.

The Chair agreed to liaise with the Police on this suggestion.

2) Councillor Price: Pleased that overall crime figures were down, but
enquired as to the reasons for the rise in ‘violent crime’.

The Police Sergeant confirmed that a number of thefts had taken place from
fast food delivery drivers and as there had been a ‘threat’ of violence it had
increased the overall figures. Also a number of incidents had taken place at a
local pub as a result of a change in the management. This issue was being
addressed by the Police and Licensing Officers.

3) Councillor Bird: Asked for details on the increase in ‘theft from
vehicles’ in East Chesterton.

The Police Sergeant confirmed that a number of arrests had been made and it
was hoped that the figures would now decrease as a result.

4) Councillor Brierley: Asked what data source was used for the needle
finds.

The Police Sergeant confirmed that figures were based on reporting from the
City Rangers.

5) Councillor Ward: Reports had been made regarding a motorcyclist
driving at 90mph down Histon Road.

The Police Sergeant confirmed that he would look into this issue.
6) Councillor Pitt: Thanked Police Sergeant Wragg and congratulated the

Police on the year on year decrease in crime figures. Asked if the
burglaries in West Chesterton related to thefts from sheds.

Page 8



North Area Committee NAC/5 Thursday, 16 May 2013

The Police Sergeant confirmed that it was from sheds and garages.

7) Ms Harris: Asked why the fire in Aylesborough Close had not been
included in the report.

The Police Sergeant confirmed that the fire had taken place after the report
had been written. In response to this fire the Police had spoken with housing
colleagues about the need to secure empty properties properly.

The Community Fire Officer confirmed that work was ongoing with City Homes
to minimise the risk of fires.

8) Councillor Brierley: Asked if statistics on traffic violations such as
anti-social cycling could be included in future reports.

This comment was noted.

9) Councillor Pitt: Asked if the Police were promoting cycle safety in
schools.

The Police Sergeant confirmed that the Police had a good relationship with all
of the schools in the area and work was ongoing to promote cycle safety.

10) Councillor O’Reilly: Confirmed that any decision of the Committee
should be based on evidence, and as anti-social cycling was not
reflected in the accident statistics, she was happy for it to no longer be a
priority.

Councillor Manning supported this and agreed to work with the Police
were required to identify any ongoing hotspots for anti-social cycling.

Councillor Boyce noted that cycling accidents tended to be under-
reported, whereas most car accidents tended to be reported for
insurance purposes.

These comments were noted.

Page 9



North Area Committee NAC/6 Thursday, 16 May 2013

On a show of hands the following three Neighbourhood Priorities were agreed
unanimously:

i.  Continue the arson prevention work
ii. Continue the prevention and enforcement work to reduce cycle theft
iii. Address ASB in the green areas across the North

13/45/NAC Devolved Decision-Making and Developer Contributions:
Taking Forward North Area Priority Projects

The committee received a report from the Urban Growth Manager.

The Head of Community Development gave an update on the Sikh Community
Centre and it was agreed that a site visit would be arranged for members to
look at the plans and proposals in more detail.

The Asset Manager gave an update on the BMX Track (next to Brown’s Field
Community Centre) and the Nun’s Way Skate Park. It was agreed that
members of the community centre would be consulted and that repairs to the
5-a-side goals could also be looked at.

1) Mr Bond: Provided the committee with an update on the proposed
extension to St Andrew’s Hall.

The committee thanked Mr Bond for the update.

With regard to identifying a play area improvement option as its fourth, 1%
round priority project, the committee proposed deferring the decision subject to
a visit of the local play areas under consideration. It was also requested that
officers provide demographic information and maps to aid the future decision
making. The Urban Growth Project Manager confirmed that this could be
addressed in a report to the next Area Committee meeting on 1 August.

Resolved (unanimously) to:
i.  Note the steps being taken to deliver the North Area Committee’s current

first round priority projects, to be funded by devolved developer
contributions.

Pagesl0



North Area Committee NAC/7 Thursday, 16 May 2013

Resolved (by 7 votes to 2) to:

ii. Defer the decision regarding setting a play area improvement priority
subject to more information and a visit to the particular play areas under
consideration.

13/46/NAC North Transport Corridor Area Transport Plans: Update on
Section 106 Funding and Programme Scheme

The committee received a report from the Capital and Funding Manager, the
Cycling Projects Team Leader and the Area Manager (Traffic).

1) Ms Johnson: Expressed concern that a cycle route from Orchard Park
to the City Centre would result in more anti-social cycling.

The Cycling Projects Team Leader confirmed that the aim was to make the
route as safe as possible. It was also noted that the proposal would go out to
full public consultation.

2) Mr Bond: Suggested that the 20mph scheme may give an opportunity
to look at providing a different road environment for cyclists, cars and
pedestrians.

This comment was noted.

3) Councillor Todd-Jones: Confirmed that the Fen Road Steering Group
had generated a lot of good ideas and suggested that a further meeting
take place with input from County Council Officers and Network Rail.

The Area Manager (Traffic) agreed to progress this with Network Rail and then
liaise with Councillor Todd-Jones.

4) Resident: Asked if any additional funding had been allocated for the
Histon Road crossing.

The Area Manager (Traffic) confirmed that there was a total budget of £70,000

and that discussions would take place with Parish Councils prior to a public
consultation.

Page 11



North Area Committee NAC/8 Thursday, 16 May 2013

5) Councillor Todd-Jones: Asked if any progress had been made on the
additional projects as identified at the North Area Committee in
September 2012.

The Capital and Funding Manager confirmed that these would be looked at.

6) Mr Bond: Confirmed that the bus stop on Mill Road remained a
problem.

This comment was noted.

7) Mr Bond: Suggested that, as the bus stop on Green End Road was
now permanent, appropriate road markings should be installed.

This comment was noted.

The meeting ended at 10.00 pm

CHAIR

Pagesl12



COMMITTEE ACTION SHEET

Commiittee

North Area Committee

Date

16 May 2013

Circulated on

6 June 2013

Updated on

ACTION

LEAD
OFFICER/MEMBER

TIMESCALE

PROGRESS

Open Forum
Look into the poor

state of the zebra
crossing in
Chesterton High
Street — and the need
for repair

Councillor Manning

Feedback at a
future meeting

TBC

Open Forum
Anti-social cycling in
Metcalf and Gilbert
Road — ongoing
discussions with
officers.

Councillor Scutt

Feedback at
the future
meeting

TBC

Police Item
Liaise with the Police
on Councillor
Manning’s suggestion
regarding highlighting
additional ‘root
causes’ of issues in
thier reports. This
would allow the Area
Committee to take
away and progress
issues that were not
directly under the
control of the Police.

Clir Todd-Jones

Ongoing

TBC

Developer
Contributions

Organise a tour of the
proposed Play Area
Sites prior to the
committee making a
final decision.

Tim Wetherfield

Page

ASAP

2 13

Ongoing




Developer
Contributions

Organise a site visit to
the Sikh Community
Centre for members
to look at the plans
and proposals in more
detail.

Trevor Woolams

ASAP

Ongoing

North Area Corridor
Funding
Proposal for a further
meeting of the Fen
Road Steering group:
The Area Manager
(Traffic) agreed to
progress this with
Network Rail and then
liaise with Councillor
Todd-Jones.

The Area Manager
(Traffic)

ASAP

Ongoing

Page 14




Agenda Iltem 5

Agenda ltem
CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL
REPORT OF: Director of Environment
TO: North Area Committee 1/8/2013
WARDS: Arbury, East Chesterton, King’s Hedges and West

Chesterton

DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS AND DEVOLVED DECISION-MAKING
FIRST ROUND PRIORITY-SETTING FOR PLAY AREA IMPROVEMENT

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Area Committees have devolved decision-making powers over how
some types of developer contributions are used. More information
about the process and projects funded from developer contributions
can be found on the Council’s web page (see section 5 of this report).

1.2 Local residents and community groups were consulted in October
2012 on ideas for new/improved local facilities to help address the
impact of development. In the first priority-setting round, the North
Area Committee set three local priorities last November. It was not
able, at that stage, to identify a fourth priority (as had been envisaged
under devolved decision-making) given a lack of available developer
contributions funding, not least for play area improvements.

1.3 Supplementary (‘provision for children and teenagers’) developer
contributions were made available to the North Area from the city-
wide fund in January 2013. The Area Committee in May then
considered its options for improving a local play (from the eight
suggested for improvement via last autumn’s area consultation), but
deferred making a decision. Members asked for more information
about the possible sites, as well as more demographic and mapping
data. These issues are addressed in the appendices to this report:

A. Virtual tour’ of the 8 play area options in the North Area

B. Examples of new play equipment that could be provided

C. Maps of the catchment areas for each of the eight play areas

D. Analysis of children/young people statistics from the 2011 Census.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 To identify which play area to improve using developer contributions,
as a fourth priority from the first round of devolved decision-making.

Report Page No: 1 Page 15 Agenda Page No:



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

CONSIDERATIONS

A summary of the eight play area options is set out on the next page.
The suggested improvements are illustrations of what may be
possible (Appendix C shows what some of the equipment can look
like). Once the Area Committee has chosen which play area to
prioritise, more specific proposals will be developed in consultation
with play area users, neighbours, local councillors and others.

In the first priority-setting round, each area has been invited to
identify as many priority projects as there are wards in their area. As
the North Area Committee (with four wards) has already set three
first round priorities, it is asked to identify one play area for
improvement at this stage. This is necessary to ensure that the
overall delivery programme of developer contribution-funded projects
is fair and consistent across all areas. The second priority-setting
round will take place this autumn so there will be a further opportunity
for the North Area Committee to consider whether to prioritise further
play area improvements, provided that the levels of developer
contributions funding allow.

Available funding: Adding the (city-wide) supplementary funding
(around £47,500) to the existing devolved contributions (around
£10,000), the North Area Committee has about £57,500 of ‘provision
for children and teenagers’ contributions for new play equipment. It
may also be possible to make this go further by combining it with
repairs and renewals funds (eg, where swings need to be replaced).

That said, there are some important constraints that Members will
need to take into account in priority-setting. Many play area
improvements involve new fencing and landscaping, which has to be
funded from ‘informal open space’ (I0S) contributions: the North Area
Committee currently only has around £5,000 available in this
contribution type after the allocation of £95,000 to two of its other first
round priorities (improving Nun’s Way skate park and the BMX track
by Brown’s Field Community Centre).

Whilst the current constraints on the availability of ‘informal open
space’ funding seem to cut across some of the suggested
improvements, there could be some room for manoeuvre.

a. Officers are reviewing whether any further ‘informal open space’
contributions are available to the North Area (eg, where projects
have been delivered for less than previously allocated).

b. If more ‘informal open space’ funding cannot be found, however, it
may be possible to reduce the scope of landscaping and surfacing
work for the core play area improvement to be able to go ahead.

Report Page No: 2 Page 16 Agenda Page No:



0N obed epuaby

¢ 0N 9bed uHoday

as0|) ||ennN 8b1oa9) je ealse Aejd mau ay) Aq patanod ‘penowal | $¢ ‘ce | (sebpaH s.bury)
MOU SI Bale Juawyoleo s)l :seale Ae|d siy) ajeisulal 0} JoN | Juawdinbg -pauoissiwwod-aq | ‘€Z-22 | 9AlIQ peaypoom
OEF :o1ewnsy ‘buioeuns Ajojes usalb uo swel) Bulquip e | ¢ ‘2e | (sabpaH s.bury)
pue jau Buluuids mau ‘10Jej0J MauU :UaJp|Iyod Jap|o Jo) alol\ | R sbuims § :q anjea Aeld "dv1| ‘Lz2-0Z2 | Aep asuaimen
(SOIYG"L3 "joul) %GZ3 :erewns3 “Buness g Buioeuns sbums ( oq | ¢ ‘Lg | (sebpaH s,bury)
‘(1ojoeuy/uled) ‘68) swel) paseq-Aeld ojol ‘sBbuims maN | pInoys) € :q anjea Aeld :dv1! 61-81 peoy sunmeH
SOI 210w XGz3 Al[eap! pue (seal} ainjew Joj SO %63 "[oul)
)GGF :9)ewns ‘eouay) ‘eoelns Ayajes ‘Abuuds ‘awel) paseq Jouulds e pue (usipjiyo
Aejd-sjou :Buims mau :sg| 0} dn Jojy siow }s8bbns s18d1O 18BuUNok 1oy spieoq Aeid
(SOI0¢ 1out) %083 :epewns3 “(bubped-1ed Joj Ajqissod) | yiim) dwey buiquiijo Jejnpow
punow a8y} aAowal Jo/pue bunue|d-aauy ‘ualp|iyo BunoA | abie " oq 0} swasas Ajjuadind | $¢ ‘0¢ | (uouaisay) 1se3)
Jo} yuswdinba Jaybnoypsaiepdn oy [esodoud Ajlunwwo) Ing D anjeA Aeld 'dv1| ZL-¥L | Aem Aianoasiq
(SOIXS1L3 [ouUl) 0S3 "‘90ud] ‘Mesoas Abulids (uouaisayn
:o]ewl)s3 ‘buideaspue| pue Buioua) ([8SnoJed IUIW MaU | ‘Bpl|s ¥ awel) Buiquio ‘sBuims | € ‘62 1SO\\)
‘Inogepunol mau :sbuims aoe|dal :ualp|iyo BunoA 1oy alol Z 'a/o anea keld 'dv3ll ‘SL-ZL | ®A0u9) Jnuisayn
aoeds uado ab.e| ul salbulids
Juswdojenap gy|N 9yl le seale Aejd mau Jo 1x81U09 a8y} Z 'J g 0] Swaas Mou Inq | € ‘gz (Aunquy)
ul ainjny ul Malnay ‘abe)s siy) 1e Juswdinba mau ppe 0} JON | Q palel sem anjeA Aeld "dV 1! ‘L 1-0l )IeM pliojuelg
(SOIG13 "oul) 053 :ejewns3 "eous)
© Buioepns mau ((10joed) Jo ulel) ‘6a) swely paseq Aeid aous} ‘youaq ‘Abunds
-9]04 ‘opl|s (3nogepunos Bunsixa O} uolippe ul) |9snoJed ‘Inogepunol [epad ‘sbums z | ¢ ‘2z | (sabpaH s.bury)
Buiuuids-luiw mau sbuims aoejdad :uaip|iyod BunoA 1o} alop ‘g enjea Aeld 'dv1| 6-8 Kepp s.oleoag
aoua} ‘youaq ‘sweds Buiquilo
(SOI)G° 23 "1oul) 40G3 :81ewnsy "eale paous)| ‘Buims ‘1axo0d ‘opl|s ‘salbulids (Anguy)
Jo Buideysal 1o buideospue] "Buioeuns Ajajes snid ‘Jojejod | Z ‘nun Alaoe asn-ijinw :Buims | € ‘9z suap.en
‘uaJp|Iyo Jap|o Joj swely Buiquijo AjAOE-I}INW [BUOHIPPY 'a/o anjea Aeid 'dv3| ‘2-9 elpuexaly
(gz ebed podal uo sajdwexs) sjuswanoidwi pajsabbng juswdinb3 jJuaung | sabed | (piem) eaie Ae|d

Page 17



3.6

3.7

3.8

In addition to the summary table on the previous page, Members will
also want to take account of the information provided in the
appendices and the considerations that these raise, for example....

a. Proximity to ‘neighbourhood equipped areas of play’ (NEAP) for
children and teenagers within 800 metres (eg, those at King’s
Hedges, Nun’s Way, Green End Road & Jesus Green). Examples
of those NEAPs in the North Area can be found on report page 24.

b. Whether to invest in a larger ‘local equipped areas of play’ (LEAP)
for children within 400 metres (which already have more to offer)
or smaller ‘local areas of play’ (LAP) serving children within 100
metres, some of which (eg, Beales Way, Lawrence Way) could be
upgraded to a LEAP as a result.

Maps of the catchment areas for each play area (Appendix C)
reflect accessible routes and public rights of way. As
Woodhead Drive (LAP) play area has been decommissioned,
the map for George Nuttall Close LEAP is shown instead.

c. How much weight to give to specific ideas recently put forward by
local communities. Suggestions made on behalf of Discovery Way
play area can be found on report page 16. Whilst proposals to turn
open space into more car parking raise questions about how this
sits alongside planning policy and would require planning
permission, the local engagement is to be welcomed.

d. At the same time, whether vandalism of play areas should be met
with further investment to improve them or whether the funding
would be better spent on play areas less prone to damage.

Members also asked for demographic data from the 2011 Census
about the numbers of children locally. The most detailed level of
information that is available relates to what are known as ‘lower
super output areas’ (SOAs). These are shown on the catchment area
maps in Appendix C, while Appendix D sets out the data for all the
SOAs which come within the catchment areas for any of the eight
play areas under consideration. That said, it is questionable how
useful these details will be in identifying a play area for improvement
given that the catchment areas for most play areas tend to be made
up of a number of SOAs and the SOAs tend to be much larger than
the catchment areas for play areas (particularly LAPs).

Even so, it is hoped that the ‘virtual tour’ in Appendix A and the other
analysis, combined with Members’ knowledge of their local wards,
will enable the Area to decide which play area to prioritise for
improvement.

Report Page No: 4 Page 18 Agenda Page No:



4. IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The specific implications of the particular play area that is prioritised
will be addressed at the project appraisal stage, including local
consultation on specific proposals, assessment of equality and
environmental impacts and consideration of any running and
maintenance costs for the city council. It is anticipated that the project
would be completed by the end of 2014.

4.2 Recent tendering exercises for the supply of play area equipment
have asked potential suppliers to explain how their products
incorporate difference and inclusivity into play area design. This
includes aiming to ensure that children with a disability can have the
same quality and extent of play experience. These factors have been
incorporated into the scoring of tender documents and selection of
successful contractors. The same approach will be taken forward and
developed for future tendering exercises.

5. BACKGROUND PAPERS

The following papers on devolved decision-making and developer
contributions were used in the preparation of this report.

e Report to North Area Committee, 16/5/2013
e Report to North Area Committee, 22/11/2012
e Report to Environment Scrutiny Committee, 11/6/2013

These can be found on the ‘Committee meeting minutes & agendas’
web page (http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx).

Information on devolved decision-making can be found on the
Developer Contributions web page at www.cambridge.gov.uk/S106.
There is also a web page with a parks and playgrounds map at
www.cambridge.gov.uk/map-of-parks-and-playgrounds.

2011 Census data is available on Cambridgeshire County Council’s
Cambridgeshire Atlas web pages at
(www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/business/research/researchmaps.htm)

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report,
please contact:

Author’s name: Tim Wetherfield, Urban Growth Project Manager
Author’s phone number: 01223 — 457313
Author’s email: tim.wetherfield@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 5 Page 19 Agenda Page No:



Appendix A

Virtual tour of the play area options in North Area

by a Y

In this appendix, the play area being considered is shown on the maps
- The blue/red pins denote other parks and playgrounds.

e The photographs were taken at the end of June 2013.

Play area ratings, from several years ago, relate to Play England criteria
for the amount and sophistication of equipment (where A is the highest).

ALEXANDRA GARDENS (Arbury ward) [LEAP]

Location: Whilst Jesus Green play area (itself in the process of being
improved) is within 200 metres (the other side of Chesterton Road via a

zebra crossing), Alexandra Gardens is the main play area for north of the

river and serves both the Arbury and West Chesterton wards.

®

ASTLE 5. 6% | =
wi o s, I
" 3
¥ : =
=
4 Akemay, St -f"ﬁa
§ :
= @ s, %, @
A e £ ¥ g o
% - b, 3
?b = :t e r\b\.& '9.7 1}
= = k)
oy ¥ &
A ¥ E 5 F £
- g F & o 2
g € @muany £ 5 F 0§ F 3
1l‘?"I:;!”/ & 5 Ef o ‘_{:; g
%, <« 52 v £ :
WSS o :
% - e Vigsg, ...
% & 5 sdes e,
" ek T |
. 4 s i ﬁ’- % Hamiton

- i A {\"l* 'd.-c )

" & o ¥ > - o
william e ‘% & firs g =
Nege J';S: (5 4 = F 3

5 % Bl Ton, e S 2 3
- & ® I E
'P t Edmund’s ﬁ g ﬂ{?\ -
g Nege " " ‘P
5 ege
4 ¥ “hure Jesus Green L
)
- ki l-é. B
Lucy Cavendish = ‘ !
College - o 4
? ]
&£ Magdalen Midsummer
EJ-'_ Colleg - Common
=
o L
i
fg & .ga““%u" o
1 ?5‘0, . - T
L - 5 Ly
o - » 3 """' oy
= _':‘I‘f" = Sidney Sussex
& o £ e
" = ollegs
2 2 @
_.:-ﬂ
IG&M{:‘ BV lf l 1000 fit | ‘ Senate
! b Hoige |
8% [Zoom 1 fouse Lawn oo daialioMb Bodel- -G E -

College

Agenda Page No:

Report Page No: 6

Page 20



Alexandra Gardens (continued)

Current equipment (Play Value rating C/D)

This large, fenced-off play area is intended for infants and juniors,
accompanied by an adult. It includes two sit-on ‘springies’; a slide; a
rocker, a climbing frame and a modular multi-activity play equipment (at the
time the photo was taken this was broken and taped off, but the repair has
since been made). The play area is located within a large fenced-off area,
often used for picnics.

—rin
—

Officers’ suggested improvements (Estimate: £50k, including £7.5k I0S)

There is considerable scope for improvement here and for making
provision for older children and teenagers. This could include a multi-
activity climbing frame and a rotator (see report page 25).

Officers also suggest that the fenced-off area could be landscaped
(including planting) or reshaped to make the fence-line less imposing, but
the constraints on the availability of informal open space contributions
mean that the scope of this work might need to be reduced.

Report Page No: 7 Agenda Page No:
Page 21



BEALES WAY (King’s Hedges ward) [LAP]

Location: Around 200 metres from Nuns Way play area

| satetite | Hyorid |

1], | Map
=
g
Cambridge
 Wilary Science Park
N
g2 pe ®
2 ¥ .
< - = b
w z o & §
£ o i ~
£ o G <
5 - :i‘.-}’_
= Oy "?r,h
" i A e
¥ ni 5
%, 2 . ¢ P
G % » £
u%‘}}.@'h- & e
& Q@ 4 %
v
% 4%( un, Fud e cj_s}.-
= o a
3 4 i = VL
& - ¥ & S
&
¥ O™ oo q“m &
b -«
’dt-& g g &0 - & A
- Tl g k- ; %
<, & “ ‘@- T
T f % :
* o . "I:-"'qilr &
2 od 2 q e
e & o-r" F "'2_9.-
g & B 5
'-'.'}6\ ‘ -‘?’ﬂo‘ w
- EA
Ty, 4 & @ . %
" 2 By o & o ..
£ S Gl & ‘iﬁ‘\
o % o
E i P
rizury Courf %\n * G’av
Flay Area '3;5, B
i ;%
%
" &‘;";- y
) e &
‘&}_\". L'? ,??
i L
# ?-:F
N %,
FOUERED B L OH 1000/ 4 i ol
GD’-gffl — I% e JERLON.,
[ 200m OI'EL % Map data gfﬂ? &GDQIE Terms of Uge i

Current equipment (Play Value rating D)

This is a play area for younger children. The current equipment is OK| if a

little dated, but there is not much for the children to play on. There are: two
swings (1 junior and 1 infrant); an old-fashioned pedal roundabout (which is
a real feature, worth preserving); a sit-on springy (currently with graffiti) and

a bench.

The fence around the play area is rickety and broken in places and the

path is cracked in places and has seen better days.

Report Page No: 8 Page 22

Agenda Page No:



Beales Way (continued)

Officers’ suggested improvements (Estimate: £50k, incl. £15k 10S))

There is plenty of space for development and scope for resdesign here,
and it could be possible to provide more equipment for the lower age
range.

The swings could do with replacing with ones in line with the latest play
standards. Alongside the existing roundabout and springy, there could be
room for a slide, a new mini-spinning carousel and a role-play based frame
(eg, in the shape of a train or tractor — see report page 25), as well as new
safety surfacing.

The fence and gate needs replacing and a new path would be good.
However, this may not all be possible unless further informal open space
contributions can be found.

Report Page No: 9 Page 23 Agenda Page No:



BLANFORD WALK (Arbury ward) [LAP]

Location: St Alban’s Recreation Ground play area is within 400 metres,
albeit that it is on the other side of the B1049 Cambridge Road/Histon
Road (via a pelican crossing). It is also worth noting that the land between
Histon Road and Huntingdon Road is set to be developed for the major
growth site on the NIAB development, which will include play areas.

[P £
[ map | Satelite | Hyoria |
el

e
J— - ;
v ORCHARD
a14 o 5. PARK
5/ ob
= T 4
& o e Py
& = S
f.‘:*‘r 1‘_:;:' ﬁut
: gg g st
T !
%-"I
g g™ Ay ‘
e &
E-' Th adow
] Communty _F'f'd
2 Centre f/ﬁsﬁ_f %
.-!»%’
* Ji-:ﬁllr'r'f-"l:' g
Hazel ot i~
z Haze ..1&( : .
& 2 o Close = =
] a‘nnfl Close ;:.E“' 3
=3 m & g e
% 5 ., %
- e ﬁu i
- Y] S'El‘\'_"'_l-ﬁ' Bei _\5.&
:.\}.
-?-.“‘mur'{'.t,: x Afey Wood Re
o i F5 Wy
= ¥ =
o o . 5 )
2 ol Ry 5 T - =
.;‘,D"Qa* = Gunn & 5 i £ B,
y Gy, I £ £ !
& ® oy F8 8 " iy
o g O =
g .
"'ﬂ.ln'_.,.l j
4 4 & Mgy
5
b i
A Yo ) L
rﬁ'\'ﬂ' @v e 'I"'I-Ut‘\.‘f B &
£ h-.?\
& CASTLE .
. o ah
£D E h: | 1Dﬁﬂ,;_t ¥ I i Oy
I z00m™s, 1 Map,fata ©204BGpogle - Terms of Use u

Current equipment (Play Value rating was D but now probably E)

This large open space just has two sit-on ‘springies’ for young children.
Without anything else to play on, it is questionable how much time children
and their carers spend here. Officers would now be minded to give this site

the lowest play value rating.

Report Page No: 10 Agenda Page No:
Page 24



Blanford Walk (continued)

Officers’ suggested improvements:

Anecdotal evidence would question the local appetite for more equipment.
It remains to be seen whether this play area has a long-term future.

In this context, officers would not recommend additional equipment on this
site at this stage. If, however, a clear demand for this play area emerges,
alongside existing and emerging play area provision in the vicinity, then
this could be reviewed in a future round of devolved decision-making
(assuming that funding is available for play area improvements).

Report Page No: 11 Page 25 Agenda Page No:



CHESTNUT GROVE (West Chesterton ward) [LEAP]

Location: This play area is behind Chestnut Grove. Feedback from the
North Area workshop seemed to suggest that awareness of this site (and
how to access it) as well as the levels of equipment, needs improving.
Chestnut Grove is also in the catchment area for Jesus Green, including
the skate park.

“t.-ﬁv e e P o
* Aex Wond R o By o |__Map | satelite | Hyvrid
3 3 1 e E .
& & Frtrury Court > '—
f é.' 'rj":"rr-l,: 5‘. [?'Ia},-.l!cﬁ‘f'a I%.’r-
a Pas - ba ';.‘_._-!
£ & Ve §
i 5 "I-:_
B £ 3 = .;:} e
s b g b
.&b._\ -P";'ﬁ .%’
. 4
o ¥
3 L~
o £ % ‘“ﬁ
T, A i b 3
5, 5 s ¥ CHESTERTON
% e o
¢ “ e 3 )
G o % By st -:;g} o %
qﬂ,}_ j?ﬂ S {\\E‘ = o
4 % K. ‘* -
(o e, = [
o w L ‘?HD % ?‘
L [ w ] =5 &
. i 1 w
2 & =2 \ﬁ“ﬁ
W, T 3
..%% . % &‘Q.b Q';; o " ec®
R i % -
N SN o
=g = ;ﬁ Medical Centre Fe ™ ¥
3 il ?g =
E &“ 2,
# 2 3 H'q‘i“:} RN
‘:. I K-
& ';'h ':-' IE & Ly \"z_,._,.ﬁ
o & ig S
5 b ‘ & oo
& " B,
- gandy - ’
"'ctﬂrm Hd S A
-
% - Hamilten Rd Montagues gy ff. Lf-f;’t
o L £
=+ 9 &
» e 2 4 <
2 &
?\.ﬁ- $ ) ;-
. A
té‘p‘\ f Lo
éﬁ% ‘ 1 -br.a‘-““c.
. 5
é:l
Jesus Green {%—1 ACH® Chesteftar
2 %‘ﬂ-
- - - L .
) ‘ i 1 5 Ueslis: Green
F"“‘““'I 1000 ft | = . T2 3 ,
{ i =
B Goom 1 Midsummer  yap dats 2013 Google %._, of e, _ 5

Current equipment (Play Value rating C/D)

This is play area for younger children is in good condition but there is not
much to play on. There are: two swings, a modular climbing frame with a
slide, and a springy see-saw. The area is fenced off and has a bark chip
surface. The grassed area provides space for picnics. The path around the
play area is uneven, presenting potential tripping hazards and difficulties
for access for buggies or wheelchairs.

Report Page No: 12 Page 26 Agenda Page No:



Chestnut Grove (continued)

Officers’ suggestions for improvement (Estimate: £50k, incl £15k |OS)

There is scope for additional equipment for younger children, such as a
new roundabout as a new mini carousel. The swings could do with
replacing with ones in line with the latest play standards.

In addition to new play equipment, the fenceline could be repositioned and
the access path could be improved. New trees could be added. The scope
of these improvements may need to be reduced, however, if constraints on
the availability of informal open space contributions remain.

Report Page No: 13 Page 27 Agenda Page No:



DISCOVERY WAY (East Chesterton ward) [LAP]

Location: It is worth noting that this site is within 200 metres of the larger
NEAP (neighbourhood equipped area of play) at Green End Road
Recreation Ground (see report page 24).

i)
€ | map | sateliite | Hyorid
&
o =
¥ Ff/-
¢
g
= &
o, g5 o
5-4_. ;
% G &
% &%J- -f‘
. “ k3
QKP'-E' i (=]
&
=
““ T, >
i o
o N F A
o ® g &
- v
'Qi.?/.
%,
A, -
gﬁ {"7'/ R
5 L3 T o
T B "ﬁ; e 7]
P & v & %
&CFL %, \::”Q‘ %@ "‘"ﬁi
= &
. o &
b -
%, \a &
% ‘ W 'Lﬂqj%
* {
& - s &4 Gy
e, o, o, i
%, & o Gy 3
".l"_,b, = kA % B
& & LN F &
o g A s 7 b
& e F &% @
fﬁ- > :-":"ro i a;:‘
CHESTERTON A "”cf.#&, 4
f."‘% Y e 2
T - ‘1.-'«
-
% ?" (P P 3
.-?. qﬁkﬁ E_P % =
A {;a'n ‘&"5}- '-q_'%h
%l:,{:' '-""z{f? Hivey Ca
FOWERLD EY £ chegtertan
Corale H2Y e =1
= S oo m | RIver - Map data 82012 Google - Terms of Use [l

Current equipment (Play Value rating was C but now probably D)

This is a fenced play area for children on a green surrounded by houses.
There is a large modular climbing frame and slide (including play boards
for young children) and a spinner. There is also an empty square of safety
surfacing where a damaged ‘springy’ has been removed. In this context the

play rating has probably slipped to a D.

This site suffers from extensive vandalism: the gate was stolen in June and
a large hole has been made in the safety surfacing not long after earlier
damage had been repaired. (See the comments in paragraph 3.6d).

Report Page No: 14 Page 28 Agenda Page No:



Discovery Way (continued)

-

Suggested improvements

Two sets of suggested improvements have been put forward: (1) from
County Councillor Manning in liaison with (Metropolitan) housing
association contacts, who have consulted local residents; (2) from Streets
& Open Spaces officers.

Report Page No: 15 Page 29 Agenda Page No:



Discovery Way (continued)
1. Community proposal (£80k, including £30k 10S)

The ideas forwarded by ClIr Manning is based on residents’ feedback
from a meeting and a door-knocking exercise and also takes account of
anti-social behaviour and parking issues on the estate. This has
prompted three options which have been presented as follows.

a. “Update the play equipment, level SRR
off the ‘mound’, and add a number
of trees: these would have to be
quite large as saplings will be
destroyed. This would add privacy.”
(Right: historic photo of the mound
behind the play area & the springy
which has since been removed).

b. “Just update the play equipment and add some trees — adds privacy.’

c. “Update play equipment and create some parking spaces from the
other end by using some of the existing green area. Level off
remaining green area.”

‘Feedback from residents is that the play equipment is used often and
should remain targeted for the younger age group (basically who it is
currently aimed at) but desperately needs to be updated as it is falling
apart and is easy to destroy. Residents don’t want equipment that will
target the older age group as there is a concern that it would encourage
anti-social behaviour. There still needs to be a small fence there (no
higher than the currently one to prevent cars from parking on the grass.”

Below are some pictures of some equipment (from Green Road play
area) that Cllr Manning’s housing association contacts feel would fit in.

“Feedback was that there is not enough parking and there is an issue
with residents parking on the (already narrow) road, which makes it
difficult for people to access their driveways.”

Officer comments: The community proposals in relation to the play
equipment and tree-planting are welcomed and are reflected in officers’
suggested improvements. The ideas for removing the mound and
creating extra car-parking are more problematic, however. Even if the

Report Page No: 16 Page 30 Agenda Page No:



Discovery Way (continued)

necessary informal open space funding constraints could be overcome,
reducing open space on Discovery Way to create more car parking
raises questions about how this sits alongside planning policy and would
require planning permission.

2. Officers’ suggestions (Estimate: £55k, including £5k 10S)

One of the notable absences from the current play area is a swing,
which is one of the most popular pieces of play equipment, so one of
these would be suggested. Keeping the play area for children up to 12
years of age, it could also be possible to provide a (robust) role-play
based frame (for example, in the shape of a tractor or train — see report
page 25) and a springy as well as safety surfacing and a new gate and
fencing. It is also suggested that around four (more mature and,
therefore, a little more expensive) trees could be planted for around
£5,000 of informal open space funding.

If it was possible to ease the constraints on informal open space
funding, officers would be keen to landscape the play area to make it
more interesting and attractive, which might engender a greater sense
of pride in, and care for, the play area.

Report Page No: 17 Page 31 Agenda Page No:



HAWKINS ROAD (King’s Hedges ward) [LAP]

Location
This play area is for children under 8 who live in the local vicinity. Its
usefulness is as a play area ‘on the doorstep’, but there is very little for

children to play on.

| map | Satelite | Hyoria

W
o
p &
2 oy
- 4 -l"\l" Q‘\b
_‘;__-.‘ r"—:’:-u_?ag T‘*’F OL_\;..
= 7,
E Y Y ¢
& R e,-}
Z fa
‘ ,!53(‘ i
4:'}”.1.\' { ‘?‘lt (({"‘k
P
‘& i
", & %
g = < s A & ..f_r
5¢ "j% & JitC:‘_l_,.- |I'§:'|L"1-" B d"“‘t:"' -'Jp_'
T E -3 o o
% g 7 AP @gﬁ‘ Sy
& % Oy .-;;ai& ﬂ?&" Qb.
¢ ¥
%, T L
" " 5 .
.-Iré., e ﬂ?'ir- 5 i, ) ?‘aﬁ Y, -ﬁ“f
= - = %, .,'!-
:}{‘i' ‘ o * ¥ ™
O o
& AE&- :-I«‘TH Q..b s "q
, e & #
) £ ‘$+x p
2 "'?.'-‘% & o
b (3 o
# i | 2
‘i"ﬂr e o qh
YexWood Rd e 8 i . é} @
iﬁ" 4 '_-_.&G (gﬂ/f:}d‘ = b .}
F A grbury Courl B * y -
8y 5 Play Area . "q:’/
ke = i 3 i
YRy & > %
=
o= R % 2 L
£ 4 & N
X = ki “m %
drﬂlzb ﬁh .‘-r? %}??'
.(-L\&-‘ e i
o =
# 7 &
s ;)‘5}‘ -%- 1"1"(::',": q:;? U""
, 4 2 N CHESTER| |1 bna g
(Y ) @ 3
¥ %.-* ";59 Qﬂ"‘:’ 7 "9}4\
K iy %, 2 ’
w, = Q =
p % % P %
POWERED B T, % % 7 S . B
G | 1000 ft | % %, o A% The
ogle | I - N Tl s .
- : A < Miap data 82013 Golgle - Top@ ol Use -

Current equipment (Play Value rating D)

There are two infant swings and 1 junior swing (with space for another,
which has been removed). Play equipment (possibly sit-on ‘springies’) has
also been removed from another, nearby piece of safety surafacing.

This play area is serviceable and would benefit from repair and
maintenance (albeit that it not a current priority for refurbishment).

Report Page No: 18 Page 32 Agenda Page No:



Hawkins Road (continued)

Officers’ suggested improvements (Estimate: £25k, incl. £1.5k 10S)

The swings could do with replacing to bring them into line with the latest
play standards. There is also potential for adding a role play-based frame
(eg, in the shape of a train or tractor — see report page 25) as well as new
safety surfacing and a new bench (using informal open space funding). It
could also be possible to re-orientate the play area on the green space.

Report Page No: 19 Page 33 Agenda Page No:



LAWRENCE WAY (King’s Hedges ward) [LAP]

Location: The site is in situated on a green surrounded by houses, with
close proximity to the local shops. This play area is in a popular location,
serving a lot of children in the local catchment area. Whilst Campkin Road
is busy, there is a pedestrian crossing. It is worth noting, however, that

Nun’s Way play area (NEAP) is within around 200 metres.

| satenite | Hybrid

T | Map

Cambrnidge
Soence Park

c e
*”é:s‘g.‘ﬁ ﬂF %
f,.l.‘,\lL * Lt '5." .1‘_
& % o Pl Pl 'bp,
\-§ ol ";,‘*b &
- e & 4
& 53 ¥ B
o . R {Jﬁ& %-5‘
B, G 2
e qe:"' - i o
.-._,p e & Linl Qf 'F',c,
-%/ -gﬂﬂ-l .J‘_;:-\ Q?‘_,E:
~I\r:u,f " g
L
Aﬂ», %‘-’J- Fa
T 4\6*
r:a& ¥
3 ¢
% " o <&
od Rd G ,_ .
= ﬂ-@? 5 (&‘4{‘#}.& b\,g “gé’v
3 % S
& e e
F %!rbury Court R
S Play Area "{grp
W &
=
= z '&'
g & £ e %,
'%r“f @“J % P
&x WE'_ (-
B IP:&,E_ ]
& . o 2,
OWERED BY 5 I Tﬂﬂﬂ' ﬂ"-} "IF dﬂi q‘.ﬁ
G o : L
[ 200m I % 2 ¥ Mapdata 82013 GoEDELeE-S{E_-Hr_.T-D fh-

Current equipment (Play Value rating: D)

it
7

et
¢ "B,
iy
o

i/g..

-

This site is intended for younger children accompanied by an adult. There
is a climbing frame plus two junior swings and two infant swings, but not

close together.

Report Page No: 20 Page 34

Agenda Page No:



Officers’ suggested improvements (Estimate: £30k)

The current equipment is in good condition (albeit that there is not much for
children to play on) and could stay where it is.

There is the potential to add a new rotator and a new spinning net (see
report page 25) as well as safety surfacing, on the space between the
current pieces of equipment. These might be popular with older children
and teenagers.

Report Page No: 21 Page 35 Agenda Page No:



WOODHEAD DRIVE (West Chesterton ward)

Location: There is no longer a play area here as it was de-commissioned.
Whilst officers have been asked whether it would be possible to reinstate
this play area, it is important to note that this site is less than 200 metres
from the new play area at George Nuttall Close (A ), which has 2 swings, a
group swing, a roundabout, a climbing box / slide, 2 sit-on ‘springies’ and a
walk-board. As a local equipped area of play (LEAP), George Nuttall Close
play area serves children within 400 metres, covering the catchment area
of the former Woodhead Drive LAP (see report page 33).

2 s W & =
2 % ® & _ | map | satenite | Hyorid
K 3 "
- ‘ 1‘5{‘-&’ &
4 £ F
E I?'J-\. ] A ‘f;-,-b CF*
g h%-; \ﬁbw‘- ﬂ./f_x;l
q%;, ko ¥ e
o & 3 +.
o et P
o % T fd ol :ﬁb
-"«:& 4 G ",ﬁ"" .5,.
=¢3' s i ﬁ'\ q\?qq
o= % Cia o 0 Qp
"‘:’}5 B "ﬁ".-,.-l. iy
(T o, 5 PO Y LS
-?i-' f i ru Jjé"ﬁ
O]
If"fa ‘ ot " -:a'i’& ‘*'f%
T & ve}“ {f "3',37
b & A () .
b{‘:ﬂ . o, b
o e
o k & % F.
2 - o i a.-'§> &
2 =7 *‘Eu,f.‘-\:- QD;-‘S" ‘Ssk
rbury Court % " "’Ebv
Play Area B =h
; % N
P
,:'I
= %‘H @ b
& % % =) (5
uF ) s 15 “@,
x“& & ® A L
AF &E‘S‘\ % %
_J.L-:F‘E . _ghé‘ @q < %
E” P CHESTERTON
R %
% % G %
u}{l Qj I::'?_::- 'E; %ﬁr
% % S E i
= 5 7 3 -
%, . < “ % = y e &
[ * & - . )
l S £ b
< s - '\"é' £
Y l e P
< i el QQ.:Z'L
& o H N
) r '-'F' ‘ Chesterton '?_,:_2
) Medical Centre 3 Lhesterton
%:‘;Ir EIIL. | 100% f L ﬁ Medical Centr a %
il prre | I i ox Map daf%@zma Google - Terme offise| | -

Current site (no play value rating)
None. The play equipment that used to be on this site has been removed
because it was in a poor state of repair.

Report Page No: 22 Page 36 Agenda Page No:



Woodhead Drive (continued)

This is where the Woodhead Drive play area used to be.

i ..,:ﬂ‘,'

Officers’ suggested improvements

Not to reinstate the Woodhead Drive play areas because its catchment
area is now covered by the new play area at George Nuttall Close

Report Page No: 23 Page 37 Agenda Page No:



Neighbourhood equipped play areas:

Green End Road

Nuns Way

by mﬂ..li\llllllmmln o el 1

Report Page No: 24 Page 38 Agenda Page No:



Appendix B
Examples of some of the types of equipment
suggested as play area improvements

These are illustrations of the equipment that officers have in mind. Local
consultation and tendering exercises will take place on specific proposals.

Multi-use activity / climbing frame for older children and teenagers

Mini-spinning carousel

Rotator Spinning net

Report Page No: 25 Agenda Page No:
Page 39



Appendix C
Maps of the catchment areas for each of the eight play areas

Age Group (Count)

"':II P iﬂ‘-"--'-- :

10-14

[ Lower Super Output Area 2011 |

i |

\o ] ] Lea 0.km) Network Bufter
- Yheon P WAL TN e T

19 July 2013

Alexandra Gardens (LEAP)

1:13,000 @ A4

(€ Crown copyngh! and database nght 2013, Ordnance Survey Licence No. 100019730,

Report Page No: 26 Agenda Page No:
Page 40



AV % By B
g . £ Playing - 7}
L : Field ¢ -
' '5{' ‘ff*.y o R . A P 1 .
/. o ! o ._’ A
PR s VLSS
v ¢ @ ': ;\{:""_‘;\1 ~ L
; 4 4m 4 PN : - LS Sl v
oun, N . S ’ Pt S N : 4
Offe gt . % b 3
PW N/, *‘»‘_- 4 E
A R T
Po L, o b3 o ]
M T e p SR
!' _s':_ & ‘ s %\\:\ s
Age Group (Count) O EK (S N %
Lower Super 29 DRTyE 7
OQutput Area | 04 | 59 (1014|1517 fé;» b
E01017977 107 87 79 42 B =) fm | ] Lower Super Gutput Area 2011
E01017980 71 46 46 29 p [ LAP (0. 1km) Network Butter
o A A L = 0 kA
: 19 July 2013
Froduced ¥
l Beales Way (LAP) it SIS Team
1

{€) Grown copynght and database nght 2013 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100019730

1:6,000 @a4

Report Page No: 27 Page 41

Agenda Page No:




== /< “\Woodhougs,Farm
<
),
3
*
3
4
3
&
'S
¥
*A
’  §
/ - -
f(! ﬂ\i 2208 F o i
. ¥ | e
1/ L7 W
),f’ o E = 5
v < =
/; = Riy§
by » .
- Mo =
. N / Ni=hl, 0 - é
2. == oA Hiry ==t =4
,'1‘2’ A [ & ?' 3 : ]
; VY i rgH =
o, L
- » L E )
” u 4 :
Sch 7 CL
A ! | [T
o ROAD ] 50 100 150
& \ = . g :
Age Group (Count) s 5 @ santeawon
Lower Super % . Ty L o §Cty Boundary
OutputArea | 04 | 59 |10-14|15-17 : === Elt.:pﬁzm,a::n
E01017951 87 57 64 38| %% vl _ b I:I. .
|m" 19 July 2013
by
Blanford Walk (LAP) 61 Team
Information Systems, Emaronment Dept
s -
(¢) Crown copyright and database right 2013 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100016730 1.6,000 @A4

Report Page No: 28 Page 42 Agenda Page No:



A

T

it o

A

—ET ; ;ﬂ
by
- ‘1_'1%_15

fe_ill'lm'm;
- _‘ ,
S

r 59
[Eotot7e7a | 124] 83| 69|
[Eotot008 | 117| 94
[E01018010 79 61

@  Chestnut Grove Play Area
[ tower Super Output Area 2011 [

D% e v e r e

[E01032802 65| 53 42| 23k Ul Dmm&m;mm
,-'n T L e T W e R AT ;‘"bilg L a 4{‘”.’” Jf(‘?—ﬁ!’-‘,’s ' r?n'i—'-'

e 19 July 2013

[Fodweaty |

e p—r—

{¢) Crown copyright and databass right 2013 Ordnance Survey Licence No. 100016730, L 1:10,000 @ A4

Report Page No: 29 Page 43 Agenda Page No:



151 £ g T AR T S (R S | hon e RN

Report Page No: 30 Page 44 Agenda Page No:



4

Ve

z IR BN,

% ﬁ&é

=Py N 7,
%

A

%

[ ower Super Qutput Area 2011
[ LaP (0.1km) Nstwork Buffer
A

T T S

;

19 July 2013
[Fodcedby GIS Team

Hawkins Road (LAP) Secow
e vegt
1:6,000 @a4

{c) Crown copyright and database nght 2013 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100019730

Report Page No: 31 Page 45 Agenda Page No:



-

L #

y 5 %40 :
Age Group (Count) ALPRIVE sl
Lower Super f}};, %
OutputArea | 04 | 59 |10-14| 1517 [~ BITS
E01017975 12/l 9% " 4 &
{E01017977 107 87] 79| a2p” )
Lawrence Way (LAP)

N

25 & W
&
. @ Lawrence Way
L ]
L .. I City Boundary
D Lower Super Qutput Area 2011
[ LA (0. tkm) Netwerk Butfer
-
19 July 2013
e GIS Team

{c} Crown copyright and database right 2013 Ordnance Survey Licence Mo 100019730

Scaie:
1:5,500 @a4

Report Page No: 32

Page 46

Agenda Page No:




.l - = ::mn
George Nuttall Close (LEAP) S
1 CEemm ot ek e g A3 s S | oamoe e 100117 1.'-!11,@{&1

Report Page No: 33 Page 47 Agenda Page No:



:ON 9bed epuaby ¢ ‘0N obed Loday

Page 48

ey 8. 6 k4 Aep\ @ousime] / peoy supmeH | /6210103
GY 9t 29 G/ 9s0|Q ||lennN 8bJos | 900810103
6S 18 8G 66 9s0[D |leynN 861089 | 976210103
/G G6 /8 Zhl 9s0[D |lenN 861089 | $/6/10L03
29 eel 28 €0l Aep Asanoosiq | 126210103
1S G9 €8 74 9S0|Q |[eNnN 861089 /o019 nuIsayd | €/6/10103
ez A% €S G9 9A0ID JNUISBYD | 2082€01L03
A% G9 19 6. 9A0ID JNUISBYD | 0L08L0L03
€g €9 6 i 9A0ID JNUISBYD | 800810103
8¢ 9 /G /8 MeM piojuelg | 166210103
Aepp @ouaime] / 8s0|D |[enunN
A4 6. /8 /0L ablos9 / peoy supmeH / Aepy sejleeg | £/6/101L03
62 of ot L. Aepy seleag | 086210103
G GP 0S 69 suapleo elpuexaly |  /6/2£0L03
A4 99 09 001 suapJeg elpuexsly | 600810103
0Z 9z v 9f suspJeo eipuexaly | 856/10L03
e 29 9t 6. susplen elpuexaly | 056210103
e¢ ot 2S g8 suapleo elpuexaly |  6¥6/.10L03
siedk /-G | suedA yL-0L | S4edh -G sieak -0 10J Juswiyoled Jo Med "}Ja1 YOS

(voOS) eate ndino i1adns |aAd] }samo| Aq ajdoad BunoA pue ualpjiyd Jo siaquinN
L L0Z Shsua) ayj} wou} ejep siydesbowap pajielaq
g Xipuaddy




Agenda Iltem 6

rﬂb{ Cambridge City Council ltem
QL
To: North Area Committee
Report by: Head of Community Development
Relevant committee:  North Area Committee 1 Aug 13
Wards affected: Kings Hedges

Community Facility Capital Projects in the North Area - Gurdwara
and Buchan Street Neighbourhood Centre

1. Executive summary

1.1 This report provides an update on the provisional grant
award of £50k made by this committee in November 2012 to
provide a community room within the Gurdwara in Kings
Hedges. The Sikh community have now changed their plans.
The internal space (which was to be the community room)
has been improved and decorated and they have installed a
new kitchen. The space is now used by their community for
communal meetings and eating. Their new plans need to be
worked up in more detail but include the construction of a
stand-alone community facility at the rear of their car parking
area. They are asking for approval of a revised grant of
£100k.

1.2 The report also sets out an initial proposal to create an
additional meeting room at Buchan Street Neighbourhood
Centre so that 2 existing rooms could be hired out to a
service provider of pre-school age child care. There is a high
demand for this service in Kings Hedges and a lack of places
available. The additional meeting room would protect existing
community use during the day time and provide additional
community space in the evenings and at weekends. Any
additional income generated would help to reduce the net
cost of running the centre.

Report Page No: 1 Page 49



2. Recommendations

2.1

The Area Committee is recommended:

a) To withdraw its offer of a £50k capital grant to the
Gurdwara for an internal community room and to invite Dr.
Jagjit Singh to submit detailed proposals for his
community’s revised scheme in the autumn for
consideration as part of the next round of project
prioritisation under the Council’s devolved decision
making process for developer contributions. As set out
under Option B in paragraph 3.7.

b) To give their views about initial proposals to create
additional community space at Buchan Street
Neighbourhood Centre and, if supportive, to ask officers
to consult the Executive Councillor for Community
Wellbeing and, if she is supportive, to report back to the
area committee with detailed proposals and project
appraisal.

3. Background

3.1

3.2

On the 22" November 2012 north area committee prioritised
funding of £50k towards the provision of a community
meeting space at the Sikh Gurdwara in Kings Hedges. The
proposal put forward by the Sikh’s Management Committee
was to create a community room within the rear bar area of
the existing building which local groups could hire. There
would be accessible toilet facilities and an adjacent kitchen.
The £50k award was provisional, subject to a detailed project
appraisal showing costs and a plan to deliver the scheme by
March 2014.

In January 2013 the Head of Community Development was
informed that the Sikh’s Management Committee was re-
considering its ideas for the Gurdwara. On 16™ May, Dr.
Jagjit Singh attended north area committee to explain that
they now wanted to construct a separate community room
but that this would cost more money. Members expressed
concern that the plans had changed, more money was now
required and that the project was delayed.

Report Page No: 2 Page 50



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

North area committee members were invited to the
Gurdwara on 19" June where Dr. Jagjit Singh explained their
new plans to build a small stand-alone community facility
with toilets and kitchenette at the rear of the Gurdwara’s car
park. Detailed cost estimates were not available but were
considered by Dr.Jagjit Singh to be around £170k (assuming
the new building would be VAT exempt). Dr. Jagjit Singh said
that he thought his Management Committee could raise
around £70k from donations and from discount from
supportive contractors from the Sikh community. They would
require around £100k as a capital grant from north area
committee.

The rear bar area has now been converted into a communal
space where the Sikhs gather together to hold activities or to
eat after prayers which are held in the front area of the
building. The communal space is also now a religious area
and visitors are asked to remove their shoes and cover their
heads. There is a new kitchen adjacent to the communal
space.

At the meeting on 19™ June, members were informed that
the Gurdwara was proving very popular as it was the only
one in the wider Cambridge area and many Sikhs travelled a
long way to attend (the Cambridge Sikh Society’s website
says it is the only Gurdwara in Cambridgeshire). The existing
building was already crowded at times and the Sikh'’s
Management Committee wanted to use the new community
facility for their activities as well as to hire to local groups.

Members attending the Gurdwara meeting expressed the
following concerns:

a) The proposals had completely changed from the original
plans.

b) The amount of grant required had doubled.

c) The original plans would have encouraged local groups
into the Gurdwara which would have been positive for
community cohesion. The new plans would separate local
groups from the Gurdwara.

d) There were no detailed designs and costs available.

Report Page No: 3 Page 51



3.7

3.8

3.9

e) It was not clear how they could deliver the project by
March 2014 (assuming the increased grant was
confirmed).

f) If the Sikhs wanted to use the new building themselves
due to over-crowding, this would limit the building’s
availability for local groups.

g) Wanted re-assurance that there would be no
discrimination against any community groups wishing to
hire the facility.

The Head of Community Development met with the Chair,
Vice Chair and Spokes of north area committee on 2" of July
to discuss options. These are:

a) That the area committee withdraws its provisional grant
offer of £50k because the original proposal has completely
changed.

b) That north area committee withdraws its provisional grant
offer of £50k but asks Dr. Jagjit Singh to submit revised
and fully costed proposals, with a delivery programme, in
the autumn which can be considered as part of the next
priority setting round for devolved developer contributions.

c) That the area committee increases its grant offer to
£100k, subject to:

i) detailed project appraisal including costs, design and
delivery programme showing how it will be delivered by
the end of March 2014.

ii) Reassurance about community access

iii) Planning permission, Building Regulations approval

North area committee is recommended to agree option B.
This will give Dr.Jagjit Singh more time to consult his
community and draw up detailed proposals for proper
consideration. The projects prioritised in the autumn will not
have a March 2014 completion deadline although the
developer contributions currently earmarked for the
Gurdwara have to be contractually committed by June 2015.

If members agree option B, they are also asked to consider
an alternative project to increase community space at
Buchan Street Neighbourhood Centre.

Report Page No: 4 Page 52



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Buchan Street Neighbourhood Centre

Officers in community development have been working with
County Council officers to consider how we might assist with
the high demand for pre-school age child care in the Kings
Hedges and Arbury areas. Suitable rooms need to have
access to a safe outdoor area, have separate toilet facilities
for very young children and be large enough to be viable to
service providers.

Buchan Street Neighbourhood Centre is in an ideal location
and it has a purpose built room with children’s toilets and
access to a safe garden area. The issue is that demand is
very high in the area and the room is only half the ideal size
for a fully viable childcare programme.

A solution would be to provide a new door into an adjacent
meeting room so that the child care provider has secure
access to both rooms. However, this would reduce the
amount of hire space during the day for local community
groups (the room would still be available in the evenings and
at weekends).

Officers have asked the Council’s Architect to look at the
building and he has provided an outline proposal to create a
new meeting room of similar size to the one which would be
‘lost’ by converting the large entrance foyer and creating a
new entrance adjacent to it. Very initial cost estimates for the
work to the entrance foyer are £70k including fees and
project management. This could potentially be met from
developer contributions for improving community facilities.

This would enable the 2 existing rooms to be hired out to a
child care provider under a longer term agreement whilst
protecting the amount of space available during the day for
local community groups. There would be additional
community space in the evenings and weekends.

This arrangement would also help to ease the local demand
for pre-school age child care and provide some additional
income for the centre which would help to reduce the net
cost of the service.

Report Page No: 5 Page 53



4.7

4.8

In addition, officers asked the Architect to consider whether
a single storey extension could be constructed in the garden,
adjacent to the existing child care room, to provide the
required space. Officers are in discussion with County
officers to enquire whether the County Council might fund
this work if it was dedicated child care space.

If members are generally supportive of the above, officers
will progress the preparatory work further in consultation with
the Executive Councillor for Community Well-being and ward
councillors and bring a detailed project appraisal with costs
and delivery timetable back to the area committee. The
works would be subject to planning and building regulations
approval.

5. Implications

5.1

5.2

5.3

North area committee has £200k of devolved developer
contributions to allocate to projects that will improve
community facilities within their area. This figure includes the
provisional £50k allocation to the Gurdwara. £60,585 of the
devolved contributions has to be contractually committed by
June 2015.

Approval of the Gurdwara funding (either now or in the
autumn) would be subject to a detailed project appraisal with
Equalities Impact Assessment, costs and project
programme, any planning or building control approvals and a
completed Capital Grant Agreement setting out community
access arrangements.

Approval of the Buchan Street funding would be subject to a
detailed project appraisal with Equalities Impact Assessment,
costs and project programme and any planning or building
control approvals.

5. Background papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this
report: N/A

Report Page No: 6 Page 54



6. Appendices

6.1 Appendix A: Plan of Gurdwara proposals
6.2 Appendix B: Indicative plan of Buchan Street proposals

7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the
report please contact:

Author’'s Name: Trevor Woollams
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 457061.
Author’s Email: Trevor.woollams@cambridge.gov.uk

Report Page No: 7 Page 55



Appendix A — Gurdwara revised proposals for Community Room

f
|
il i
.rl faore 1 SO0 & 00 rmm
Proposed |ocation of y Koo 2 4000 1 3000
new build external
i
!
e *—“

Report Page No: 8 Page 56




Appendix B — Buchan Street Indicative Plan (Scheme 1 preferred)

Report Page No: 9 Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



Agenda Item 7

A Cambridge City Council Item
A

To: North Area Committee 01/08/2013

Report by: Andrew Preston

Project Delivery and Environment Manager

Wards affected: Petersfield, Romsey, Coleridge, Abbey

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME

1.0 Executive summary

e This report requests that the Committee determine which of the
proposed EIP schemes are allocated funding as part of the 2013/14
Environmental Improvement Programme, from those listed in
Appendix A of this report from the £71,338 budget available.

e This report also requests that the Committee determine whether the
proposed minor traffic regulation order schemes, listed in Appendix
E of this report under ‘Proposed Traffic Regulation Order Schemes’,
should be allocated funding from its remaining joint minor highway
works budget.

2.0 Recommendations
The North Area Committee is recommended:

2.1 To allocate funding of £26,300 to the schemes in appendix A that
have County Council Local Highway Improvement (LHI) funding.

2.2 To allocate funding of £5,954 to the installation of new hanging
baskets on High Street, Chesterton as shown in Appendix A of this
report.

2.3 To allocate funding of up to £39,084 to the remaining proposed
projects in Appendix A of this report.

2.4 To approve those projects for implementation, subject to positive
consultation and final approval by local Ward Councillors.

2.5 To note the progress of existing schemes listed in Appendix C of this
report.

2.6 To approve the delivery of the new minor traffic regulation orders
listed in Appendix E, at an estimated cost of £4,800, funded by the
remainder of the North Area Committee 2011/12 joint minor highway
works budget.

Report Page No: 1 Page 59



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

SUGGESTED SCHEMES FOR THE 2013/14 PROGRAMME

Initial feasibility work has been carried out on all of the schemes that
have been suggested for the 2013/14 Environmental Improvement
Programme (EIP).

The table in Appendix A lists all of the schemes that could be feasibly
delivered as part of this year's EIP Programme, should they be
allocated funding by North Area Committee.

Any scheme that involves the public highway was submitted to the
Highway Authority (Cambridgeshire County Council), to apply for
funding from the County Council’s Minor Highway Works Budget.

Schemes numbers 10, 11 and 12 have secured funding from the
County Council Local Highway Improvements (LHI) budget for
2013/14 totalling £21,700. This funding is subject to a minimum 10%
third party contribution, in this case the Environmental Improvement
Programme.

The North Area Committee has £71,338 available to allocate to
schemes from its Environmental Improvement Programme Budget.
This is made up of an annual allocation of £59,200, plus the remaining
budget from previous programme years of £12,138. From this
available budget it is recommended that £26,300 is allocated to LHI
funded schemes and £5,954 allocated to the installation of new
hanging baskets on High Street, Chesterton, leaving a budget of up to
£39,084 for new schemes.

Further details of the proposed schemes can be found in Appendix A
of this report.

Some of the suggested schemes for this year's programme have not
been included in Appendix A. This is a result of the scheme not being
deliverable, schemes that are being funded elsewhere or the work is
to be implemented by others. Table on page 3 provides a summary of
these schemes.

Report Page No: 2 Page 60



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

Report Page No: 3

Scheme

Position

Carlton Way Verges, New
trees and verge
refurbishment close to its
junction with Gilbert Rd.

New trees have since been installed and the County
Council are looking to undertake improvements on the
verge areas as part of their maintenance programme.

Dowding Way, Issue outside
No 1 & No 2 and opposite.
Large vehicles have
problems getting down this
road when cars are left in the
road and the verge.

It is Proposed to address this problem using double
yellow lines therefore funding to support this proposal
will be taken from The Joint Minor Highway Works
Budget.

Elizabeth Way Bridge Railing
to be provided on the road
side of the Elizabeth Way
bridge

Costs to install the required railings on both sides of the
bridge would be in the region of £100,000 therefore the
scheme is not deliverable under the Environmental
Improvement Programme. In any case this scheme is
not supported by the County Council.

Fallowfields Give Way
Markings - Road priority
markings at the two junctions
that enter the loop of
Fallowfield area.

The County Council have advised that give way
markings in residential streets are not recommended as
they could potentially lead to those who have the priority
to increase their speed. Having no give way markings in
residential streets is seen as a way to make the road
user slow down and be more cautious on the approach.
For these reasons this scheme is not deliverable.

Edinburgh Road Area, dog
mess bins.

Not to be funded by the EIP programme, to be delivered
by the Streets & Open Spaces Team (Street Cleansing)

Additional lighting along the
path which links Pakenham
Close to Kinross Road.

Balfour Beatty looking to replace the lighting in this area
as part of the PFI with the County Council. Additional
lighting requirements will therefore be discussed further
with the County Council/Balfour Beatty.

Above: Schemes that are non-deliverable, are being funded elsewhere or the work is to

be implemented by others.

PROPOSED TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER SCHEMES

In 2011/12 the County Council, through the Cambridge Area Joint
Committee, allocated £7000 to the North Area Committee from its
minor highway works budget, to deliver minor traffic regulation orders
and related works.

The North Area Committee approved a matched funding allocation
from its Environmental Improvement Programme budget taking the
total budget to £14,000.

Since then various traffic regulation orders have been delivered,

following approval by this Committee, as shown in Appendix E under
‘“Traffic Regulation Orders Implemented’.

Page 61



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

410

4.11

5.0

There are also some proposed orders that are still in progress from
the list of proposed schemes put forward last year as shown in
Appendix E under ‘Traffic Regulation Orders in Progress’.

These schemes rely on resources made available by the County
Council as the traffic authority. The City Council does not have the
authority to carry out the statutory process required for the introduction
of the traffic regulation order. It also cannot determine any objections
that are subsequently received. This currently has to be carried out by
the respective portfolio holder, County Clir Mac McGuire.

Taking into consideration the cost of schemes that have now been
completed and the estimated cost of those still in progress, the
remaining budget available for new suggested Traffic Regulation
Order schemes is approximately £11,000.

Suggestions have been received from Ward Councillors and Officers
from the City Council’'s Waste Services Department with an estimated
value of £4,800. Taking this into account there is still approximately
£6,200 remaining that can be spent on any further Traffic Regulation
Order Suggestions put forward.

There are streets across the city where access for larger vehicles is
made very difficult or in many cases impossible by the location of on
street parking.

This also has a direct implication for emergency services, particularly
the fire brigade, where the consequences are far more serious.

All of the suggestions made by these officers have therefore been
included in Appendix E.

Members of the Committee are asked to approve further development
and implementation of the schemes listed Appendix E under
‘Proposed Traffic Regulation Order Schemes’, subject to positive
consultation and any subsequent objections to the proposed TRO
being upheld as part of the statutory process.

Background papers

None

Report Page No: 4 Page 62



6.0 Appendices

APPENDIX A
Summary of Feasible EIP Schemes for 2013/14.

APPENDIX B
Details of Proposed Schemes

APPENDIX C
Progress of Existing Schemes

APPENDIX D
EIP Eligibility Criteria

APPENDIX E
Proposed Minor Traffic Regulation Order Schemes

7.0 Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report
please contact:

Author’'s Name: Andrew Preston
Author’'s Phone Number: 01223 457271
Author’s Email: andrew.preston@cambridge.qgov.uk

Report Page No: 5 Page 63



"SHIOM
oeuwe)} pue spJe||oq Jaquil}
10 uonejeisul ‘sablay sseio) Jo
JuswaoJojulal Buipnjoul sapis
uoneynsuod olgnd yjoq uo peoy Asjwuug pue
0} 108lgns awayos |ooyos ay) usamiaq bunyied
‘suoljeoo| aal) pue sauor-ppo [ebuaA yim sanssi ssaippe djay
S82IAISS JO UoI}ISOd 000°S 1 0 000‘SL Anguy I JID| 01 saunseaw jo uoneuiquo)| sabiap Aepp uoyued| g
"AB\\ UOJIED UM
uonounp ay 1e sylom yjyediooy
pajeloosse pue Buisso.o
paddoip mau e |jejsul ‘Aepp
SUOI}BO0| 981} pue sauor-ppo] | uojued yim uonoun( oy 8sojo sabiap sseln
S82IAISS JO uoljisOd 00091 0 00091 Aingly M JNID|  Butousy jles ybiy esuy |lejsul peoy POOA\ XBIY| ¥
‘oewJe] yum paoejdal pue
panowsal aq 0} ab.aA Jo seale
[lews AJoA BwWOS "uoIPUOD
‘pasiaApe SI Jo0d e ul ale yoiym sabion 0]
JapJo uone|nbal oiyel; (zroz/L1L02 Buipasas sseln) ‘peoy Asjulg
pasodoud ay} ay} uaym MHINDD) sauor-ppo | Buoje suonoun( snouea je sobiap
paAl@oal suoidalqo 00001 009 00¥'6 Anquy MIN JIID| sdull moj|9A s|gnop pasodoid| ssel9 peoy Asjuug| ¢
'sdoys ayj JISIA SIaALp
uaym abian sseib ayy uo Ajed
S]00J 93J) pue Jo uo Bupjied saoiyan woly
saoI1AI8s punoJlbiapun sauor-ppo | way) jo9joud 0} s,a610A sselb uo1399}0id
JO uonisod 00S‘V 0 00S‘y Angay M J1D| punose Buiousy jies ybiy ssuy abiap Aepp asiad| ¢
20eds
‘pajeato Buleq seoeds usalb Bulurewsal ay) 10910.4d 0}
Bupped jo Jjaquinu paj|ejsul 8q 0] 8oUd} |IeJ Jaquil}
puE UoI}oNJ}SUOD 8y} ybiy asuy| ‘eoeds usalb ay} Jo
108)e Aew s)o001 981} sauop-ppo] [Hed no Buey Aq | L-1 Jequinu uoisinoid Bunyied
Jo yydap pue uonisod 000°L2 0 000°L2 Ainqly MIIN IO apisino uoisirold Buppled PeOY |[349X%00]| |
3
suolnquuo9 3
pajsanbau Buipuny j3obpng Aq
KiaA19p 03 sysiy uoneoso||y di3 painsag pajewnsy piep pajowoud uondiosag awayss 9]}l swayss ‘ON

186png Aems|ohD yuior = (or)
196png syuswanoidw| AemybiH 12007 = (1IN1)

Page 64

196png syi0M\ AemyBiH Joully [1ounod Aunod = (MHINDD)

V XIAN3ddV

¥1/€102 04 S3INTHOS dIF 319ISVId 40 AAVINNNS



"uone}NSuUod ‘spoylew snoueA buisn eale sjuswanoiduw|
annisod 0] 109lgns uopalsay) | slojjiouno)| peumole ayy jo aouelseadde [eluUSWUOIIAUT
uonejuswa|dw| 00002 0 000°0Z jseq pIepn |esousb sy} arosdw| playmoled| 6
‘uonejuawaldwii
(jouno) Ayunon 3y} oxeuspun pauoddns
"UOoIB}NSUOD aJlysebpluquen) I pue uone}nsuod a1qnd oy
aAnsod 0} 000001} |[esodoud e asineQq “aull Aemjiel
109[gns uonejuawa|dwi ay) puoAaq pue 0} dn peoy sjuswanoidw|
‘saoIAIas punolbispun (or) uoualsay) ua{ Buoje sainjes} paw|ed Buiwien
Bunsixa jo uonisod 00002 000°0€ 000°0S |} jseq Jolg wil JJID oljjes) Bunsixe sy} mainay oljjel] peoy uad| 8
‘uoniqiyold
Bunyied abia e Bunuswadwii
paAlgoal Aq Bunyied abiaA juanaid
suonoslqo pue "aJenbg uspswey ul pue Bunyied abiop
pasILISAPE UOIOL]Sal sobpoH 90lid | peoy sebpaH sbury uo sabion| peoy sebpaH sbury)
Bunyed abiap 000‘S 0 000‘c sbuny uiney J|10|  sselb uo Buned ayy doys o) / @Jenbg uspswey| 2
‘sjesodo.d
ay} 10048 Aew yoiym
1N0gepunol peoy
Ainquy/Aepp als|y 8y}
0} sabueyo g|qissod
Buliepisuod ale ‘popaas sselb pue
[1ouno) Auno) eyl pajiosdo) aq 01 uayj si ealy
"UOII}NSUOD JO }INSal ‘UNOD UOSUBH UO sashoy
aAnIsod e pue |000)0.d sobpoH 99ld 8y} puiyaq peoy Aingqly| |eAoway 8a81] Uno)
8a1] 8y} 0} }0algns 000°€L 0 000°€) sbuy uiAey] J||D| Uo saau} IpuejfeT] Jo [eroway| uosueH/peoy AIngly| 9
3
suoinqLuo9 3
pajsanbau Buipuny jobpng Aq
K1aAijap 03 sysiy uoneoso||y di3 painoag pajewnsy piepn pajowoud uondiosag swayos 9]}1 awayss "ON

V XIAN3ddV

Page 65



"S]00J 981} 0} uonejal
Ul SBNSS| pue a0us)
les ybiy aauy Jequi
[leisul 0y pasodo.d

"Seale uleysad j09jo0id

0] 9oUs} Yybiy 2auy Jaquin
|leisu| ‘eale ay} anoidwi

0} Japlo ul seale Bunueld

Mau ysi|igeiss ‘buipass

sselsb 1no Aued uonipuod Jood

S|}l @Joym seale Ul uouelsey) | sJojjlouno) B Ul 8Je eale peoy plauysy
s990IAI8S punolbiapun 000°S 0 000‘S 1seg piepd| @yl punole seale usalb ay| | seblep peoy pleuysy| €1
"aAljoRI}E BJ0W
S||em 8y} axew 0} }Jomue
a|geyns dn 3Jom 0} 1Sije |eo0|
B YlIM Ylom 0} pasodoud si
} uonippe u| ‘surewsal 1@6pnq
‘sjuswanoldwi Bunybij Aue JiI Buideospue| Jouiw pue
Aue 0} uonejal ui s|lem ay} jo Bunuiedal ‘Bunybi ssediapun
paw.iuod aq 0} 104 ale (N uouslsey) | pJojjIounod panoisdwi Buisn ssedispun 9s0|) Aue4
s1s00 Alddns Auouy09|3 000°L L 0006 00002 1se3 pie A ay) 0} sjuswenoidwi| Jenn)/Aepn sJaulepn| zi
"9oueIjUd BY) 0] apls a)isoddo
ay) uo papinoud aq 0} gJoy
doiq saibbnq yum sjualed
pue slieyo@aym ‘sayiq
‘uoiisod quey 0} Ajpualiy Joasn alow ssadoe $S900Y
paddolp pasodoud je (N uopuelsay) | sJ0|1ouUNo) ay} 9xew 0} sjuswaroidwi| AembuleH uouaisayd
$991AI8S punolbiapun 00 00.2 000‘c 1seg piepA| Ss@00e ybnouay) 1no AembulieH 1seg / peoy uad| L1
"S9OINISS
punoibiapun yim
soanssi a|qissod pue
olyjel} 0} JO Pasoo i "uonoL}sal
peay bBuiuiny 1o} aoeds 1sngo. e apinoid 0] dooj
palwi "‘paAldaoal 8y} 1o »00|q 0} pasodoud ussq
Buieq suonoalqo sey spJe(joq yum eale pajue|d
ul ynsal Aew pasiel y "Alessadau sI uey)
ssa004d uoneoldde Ja)se} BUIALIp SB[DIYaA Jo/pue
‘paiinbai Aemybiy (N uopalsay) | sJojjrouno)d ,SJooel, sabeinooua yolym
ay} jo dn Buiddoyg 000°GL 000°01 000°GZ Jseq pIepn dooj| Jua1ind 8y} BAOWDY doo spjaymoje4| 0}
3
suoinqLuo9 3
pajsanbau Buipuny jobpng Aq
K1aAijap 03 sysiy uoneoso||y di3 painoag pajewnsy piepn pajowoud uondiosag swayos 9]}1 awayss "ON

V XIAN3ddV

Page 66



vse Lol viol
uoualsay) | sJojjlounoD uouelsay) ‘19a41S|uopslsay 19a.1s ybiH
- ¥56'G 0 ¥66'G Jseq piep|ubiH uo syeyseq Buibuey meN ‘syeyseq Bulbuey | /|
‘Buipsadsoud alojaq
uayeuapun aq 0} pasau pajsebbns
pINOM UOI}e}INSU0D u2aq 9ABY SUOI}BO0| OM |
‘uone}Nsuoo uoualsay) | sJojIounon| “syuspisal Allap|e Joy papiroid ‘sayouag maN
0] J08lgng swayos 00S‘2 0 0052 1seg piepA 9Q 0} S8YdUag MaU OM | ealy ssoluy| 91
"abpliq apisIanly ay} pJEOQa21I0N
uoualsay) | sJIojIoUNOD| 0} 1xau papirold aq 0y pleoq Ajlunwwon
005 0 00S'C }seq pJe A 901j0u AUNWWOD 8|gex00] abpug apisionry| Gl
*JoJIw
e Buljeisul 0} 8aibe 0}
paau OS[e P|NOM [I9UNOD "suel}sapad
£unoD pue paiinbai uouelsayD | sJojjlounoD pue s}s|[oA2 10} JO1jJU0D B peoy pu3j
Jounw Joy [leaosdde ] 4Q 00S‘C 0 0052 1seq piep|sepinoid jeyy Jeuloo pajybisun uaal9/peoy UOHIN| 1L
3
suoinqLuo9 3
pajsanbau Buipuny jobpng Aq
K1aAijap 03 sysiy uoneoso||y di3 painoag pajewnsy piepn pajowoud uondiosag swayos 9]}1 awayss "ON

V XIAN3ddV

Page 67



APPENDIX B — Details of Proposed Schemes

Scheme Number:

1

Scheme Title:

Cockerell Road Parking provision

Scheme Description:

Provide parking provision outside number 1-11 by taking out part of
the green space. Knee high timber rail fence to be installed to
protect the remaining green space.

Promoted by:

Clir Mike Todd-Jones

Ward:

Arbury

Estimated Budget:

£21000

Risks to Delivery:

Position and depth of tree roots may affect the construction and
number of parking spaces being created.

Further Scheme Information:

The aim is to provide 4 parking spaces however this will be
confirmed once public consultation has been carried out and depth
of tree roots determined. Orientation of parking spaces show is a
suggestion, final layout is to be confirmed.

Location Plan:

Timber Knee High
Rail Fencing to be

~ ./ installed Timber Knee High
.-'ll Rail Fencing to be

-

T

Existing Verge to be
Removed and

Tarmac laid to create |

parking area

T~

Photo of Existing Location:

Removed and
Tarmac laid to create
parking area

£ z Existing Verge to be

No’s 1 to 11 Cockerell Road

g

—




Scheme Number: 2

Scheme Title: Perse Way Verge Protection

Scheme Description: Knee high rail fencing around grass verge's to protect them from
vehicles parking on or partly on the grass verge when drivers visit
the shops. It is also proposed to install timber knee high rail fencing
around the large area of grass next to Carlton Terrace and re-seed.

Promoted by: Clir Mike Todd-Jones

Ward: Arbury

Estimated Budget: £4500

Risks to Delivery: Position of underground services and tree roots

Further Scheme Information:

Location Plan:

New Timber Knee
pll High Rail Fencing to
be installed

I
Existing Timber Knee

High Rail Fencing

New Timber Knee
High Rail Fencing to
be installed

Existing Timber Knee
High Rail Fencing

New Timber Knee
High Rail Fence to
be installed

Page 69




Photo of Existing Location, Carlton Terrace:

Page 70

Existing concrete
bollards to be
removed

New Timber Knee
High Rail Fence to be
installed



Scheme Number: 3

Scheme Title: Brimley Road

Scheme Description: Proposed double yellow lines at various junctions along Brimley
Road. Grass seeding and topsoil to verges which are in a poor
condition. Some very small areas of verge to be removed and
replaced with tarmac.

Promoted by: Clir Mike Todd-Jones

Ward: Arbury

Estimated Budget: £10,000 (£9,400 EIP) (£600 CCMHW 2011/12)

Risks to Delivery: Objections received when the the proposed traffic regulation order
is advertised.

Further Scheme Information: £600 contribution from the County Council Minor Highway Works
Budget (2011/2012). Remaining £9,400 requested from the EIP
budget.

Location Plan:

i & 'A Propos;double
'g‘ yellow lines

iy
QL
S

~

g

’/////’/ 7
<
‘Qy,
~ ‘ A /
£y,
Yy,

N.
7,
Xy
/////////,//
/////4//

Topsoil and seeding a Rz,
to grass verges

0 2
Xy
Rogp %
o, &
//////////////
which are in a poor s

2
— Thy,
& ) l/’
Z, &
condition L 7
L/ / % '/
a
.
Sub Sta . Proposed double ~/%////
0

2
51
N,

>
,
Zy

yellow lines

v —
[ ~

)
L
)

Photo of Existing Location:
Typical verge to be topsoiled and re-seeded (opposite Roland Road



Scheme Number:

4

Scheme Title:

Alex Wood Road Grass Verges

Scheme Description:

Install knee high rail fencing close to junction with Carlton Way,
install a new dropped crossing and associated footpath at the
Junction with Carlton Way. It is also proposed to also install timber
bollards on other grass verges that are damaged and tarmac verge
areas that are in a very poor condition and not likely to recover.
Topsoiling and seeding will be undertaken where required.

Promoted by:

Clir Mike Todd-Jones

Ward:

Arbury

Estimated Budget:

£16,000

Risks to Delivery:

Position of services and tree locations, lack of support from local
residents

Further Scheme Information:

The layout below is a suggestion, final layout is to be agreed prior
to public consultation.

Location Plan:

Timber
Knee High
Rail Fence

to be
installed

[

Verge in Poor Condition to
be replaced with Tarmac

.y

2

Proposed Dropped Crossing

Timber Bollards to

Verge in Poor Condition to Be Installed on This
be replaced with Tarmac Length of Verge

ALEX WOOD ROAD

T

»

Lyl

Timber Bollards to
| Be Installed on This

/ Length of Verge

Grass Verades to be Topsoiled and Seeded Where Required

Location

Photo of Existing

, looking

towards Carlton Way:

{ f ; . "
B
e




Scheme Number: 5

Scheme Title: Carlton Way Verges

Scheme Description: Combination of measures to help address issues with verge parking
between the school and Brimley Road on both sides. Measures
proposed include reinforcement of Grass Verges, installation of
timber bollards and changing some badly damaged grass verges to

tarmac.

Promoted by: Cllr Mike Todd-Jones

Ward: Arbury

Estimated Budget: £15,000

Risks to Delivery: Position of services and tree locations, scheme subject to public
consultation

Further Scheme Information: Location Plan below shows an initial thought on what could be

undertaken, final proposal may vary once the scheme has been
considered in more detail.

Location Plan:

Green shading:
possible area to

be topsoiled and
re-seeded

rey shading: Possible
rea of tarmac to replace
grass verge

Orange shading:
Possible area of grass T

verge to be reinforced "
"<

Possible area where
timber bollards
could be installed

Grey shading: Possible
area of tarmac to replace
grass verge




Scheme Number:

6

Scheme Title:

Arbury Road/Hanson Court Tree Removal

Scheme Description:

Removal of Leylandi trees on Arbury Road behind the houses on
Hanson Court. Once trees have been removed the area is to be
topsoiled and grass seeded.

Promoted by:

Clir Kevin Price

Ward:

Arbury

Estimated Budget:

£13,000

Risks to Delivery:

Subiject to the Tree Protocol and a positive result following
consultation. The County Council are considering possible changes
to the Mere Way/Arbury Road roundabout which may effect the
proposals.

Further Scheme Information:

Location Plan:

Proposed Removal
of Leylandi trees
to be replaced with
topsoil/grass seed

Proposed Removal
of Leylandi trees
to be replaced with
topsoil/grass seed




Scheme Number:

7

Scheme Title:

Ramsden Square / Kings Hedges Road Verge Parking

Scheme Description:

Verge Parking Restriction to stop the parking on grass verges on
Kings Hedges Road and in Ramsden Square. (excludes any grass
seeding of damaged verges)

Promoted by:

Clir Kevin Price

Ward:

Kings Hedges

Estimated Budget:

£3,000

Risks to Delivery:

Verge parking restriction advertised and objections received.

Further Scheme Information:

Proposal is for a verge parking restriction only. Verge parking
problem on Kings Hedges Road is generally in an area between
Lovell Road and No. 10 Kings Hedges Road. There is also a verge
parking issue in Ramsden Square.

Logation Plan:

e

ththth

Proposed Verge
Parking

estriction Within

he Shaded Area

%)
%, /\O
@ <>
9%
7 1
N ".‘
2 <

&

2N
5%

"
5
7,5%




Photo of Typical Verge Parking Issue (near Campkin Road):-

Page 76



Scheme Number:

8

Scheme Title:

Fen Road Traffic Calming Improvements

Scheme Description:

Review the existing traffic calmed features and layout along Fen
Road up to and beyond the railway line. Devise a proposal for
public consultation and if supported undertake the implementation.
Suggested improvements include:-

1) The removal of the existing speed cushions

2) The removal of the existing illegally installed ramps.

3) The creation of possibly 4 No. gateway priority features and the
installation of other new speed humps.

4) Cycle/pedestrian improvements at the railway crossing to link
Fen Road to the Halingway.

5) Streetscape improvements to Water Street (near the Fallowfield
junction) to tighten up the existing road layout which is very wide in
nature. This will include cycleway improvements.

Promoted by:

ClIr Tim Ward

Ward:

East Chesterton

Estimated Budget:

£150,000 (£100,000 to be funded by Cambridgeshire County
Council, £30,000 to be funded by the Joint Cycleway Budget and
£20,000 requested from the EIP Budget).

Risks to Delivery:

Position of existing underground services, implementation subject
to positive consultation.

Further Scheme Information:

Location Plan:

X ALy

@“

Existing

Cushions
A XY KK AN s o, Y
3 ’i‘:: 4 >

./’
-
%
>

X\

R
15

SN
AN N
JIop) SO

ETNEY
Crossing

.
W

X 4 2 B
é P a\“‘/r»/j
X‘a;‘@/‘v?y/%//fﬂ”
/ fl Possible new Cycle

‘\/ Q \>
WA
S / / | pedestrian link

Existing Speed Cushions

Photo of Existing Location: (Water Street looking Towards Water Lane)

e

| __FaIIowfieId;]l




Fallowfields

and topsoiling/grass

)

various methods. Methods proposed include new planting to
improve the appearance, removal of some of the very small

Improve the general appearance of the Fallowfield area using

planters (which will be replaced with tarmac

seeding where required..

Ward Councillors

East Chesterton

£20,000

Implementation subject to positive consultation.

Scheme Number:
Scheme Title:

Scheme Description:

Promoted by:

Ward:

Estimated Budget:
Risks to Delivery:

Further Scheme Information:

Location Plan:

Page 78



Photo of Existing Location:
(View looking towards Water Street)

Typical Small Planter
to be removed and
replaced with Tarmac

Photo of Existing Location:
(One of the existing planters which is in a poor condition)

Page 79



Scheme Number:

10

Scheme Title:

Fallowfield Loop

Scheme Description:

Remove the current loop which encourages 'racers' and/or vehicles
driving faster than is necessary. A raised planted area with bollards
has been proposed to block off the loop to provide a robust
restriction. A landscaped area would be effective in removing the
loop but would still be but aesthetically pleasing.

Promoted by:

Ward Councillors

Ward:

East Chesterton

Estimated Budget:

£25,000 (£15,000 EIP) (£10,000 LHI)

Risks to Delivery:

Stopping up of the highway required, application process may result
in objections being received although the scheme does have local
support. Limited space for turning head if closed off to traffic (a
potential problem for Refuge collection vehicles) and possible
issues with underground services.

Further Scheme Information:

£10,000 contribution from the County Council Local Highway
Improvements Budget (LHI 2013/14), remaining £15,000 requested
from the EIP budget.

Location Plan:

Photo of Existing Location:

Photo 1




Scheme Number:

11

Scheme Title:

Fen Road / East Chesterton Halingway Access

Scheme Description:

Hallingway cut through access improvements - Entrance need to be
more user friendly to bikes, wheelchairs and parents with buggies, it
is proposed to cut off the existing pram handles. A drop kerb to be
provided on the opposite side to the entrance. There is a difficulty
with bikes trying to negotiate the existing entrance to the Halingway
as shown on Photo 1. There is a lack of dropped kerbs opposite the
entrance as shown in photo 2.

Promoted by:

Ward Councillors

Ward:

East Chesterton

Estimated Budget:

£3,000 (£300 EIP), ( £2,700 LHI)

Risks to Delivery:

Underground services at proposed dropped kerb position.

Further Scheme Information:

£2,700 contribution from the County Council Local Highway
Improvements Budget (LHI 2013/14), remaining £300 requested
from the EIP budget.

Location Plan:

>

Proposed Position

Dropped Kerb

N

Proposed Minor
Changes to Entrance

Photo 1 -

Difficulties for bikes, entrance to be changed, Photo 2 -

pram handles to be removed:

Lack of dropped kerbs opposite the entrance:

il

.

Proposed Position of
Dropped Kerb




Scheme Number:

12

Scheme Title:

Mariner's Way/Cutter Ferry Close Underpass

Scheme Description:

Vast improvements to the underpass using improved lighting and
repainting of the walls. In addition it is proposed to work with a local
artist to work up suitable artwork to make the walls more attractive.
Existing underpass shown in photo 1 and typical artwork as an
illustration of what could be created is shown in photo 2 (taken
within an underpass in Spain).

A suggestion was originally put forward to replace the dead end
road between Mariners way and Elizabeth Way with planting or a
grassed area. The cost to undertake this would however be
substantial and the contribution from the County Council is not large
enough to cover such improvements however minor landscaping
improvements could be considered if any budget remains.

Promoted by:

Ward Councillors

Ward:

East Chesterton

Estimated Budget:

£20,000 (£11,000 EIP), (£9,000 LHI)

Risks to Delivery:

Electricity supply costs are yet to be confirmed in relation to any
lighting improvements, this would need to be determined before the
scheme moves forward.

Further Scheme Information:

£9,000 contribution from the County Council Local Highway
Improvements Budget (LHI 2013/14), remaining £11,000 requested

from the EIP budget.

Location Plan:

Mayflower House

Lodge

7.
W
6¢

€ Sub Sto

w
~

Sts 9l

L UP‘P \ \

7\
o T 3 s ay and

¥

fpg DJOM % 03

CUTTER FERRY CLOS
Ic) HLESVZ\WB
wooil 240

WARNER' >

54

50
s
—

Y




Photo 1 — Existing underpass at Elizabeth Way, looking towards Cutter Ferry Close

Photo 2 — lllustration showing artwork in an underpass in Spain

Page 83



Scheme Number:

13

Scheme Title:

Ashfield Road Verges

Scheme Description:

The green areas around the Ashfield Road area are in a poor
condition. Proposal is to carry out grass seeding, establish new
planting areas in order to improve the area. It is also proposed to
install timber knee high fence to protect certain areas.

Promoted by:

Ward Councillors

Ward:

East Chesterton

Estimated Budget:

£5000

Risks to Delivery:

Underground services in areas where it is proposed to install timber
knee high rail fence and Issues in relation to tree roots.

Further Scheme Information:

Location Plan:

Photo of Existing Location:

hoto 1

Proposed Grass
Seeding, planting
and timber knee
high rail fencing

e
<§7 O

W

Chestertor
Methodist
Church




Scheme Number:

14

Scheme Title:

Milton Road/Green End Road

Scheme Description:

Unsighted corner that provides a conflict for cyclists and
pedestrians. Proposal is to Install a mirror at this location, however
this would need Department for Transport (DFT) approval and also
approval from the County Council to install any such mirror on
existing equipment. The angle of the mirror would need to be
assessed to determine if a mirror will actually be effective at this
corner. It is recommended that the existing white lining is improved
to make the segregation between cyclists and pedestrians clearer.

Promoted by:

Ward Councillors

Ward:

East Chesterton

Estimated Budget:

£2500

Risks to Delivery:

Department for Transport (DFT) approval required and
Cambridgeshire County Council would also need to agree to have a
mirror attach to their existing equipment, this may not be granted.
The desired angle for the mirror may not be achievable.

Further Scheme Information:

This is a shared use path that has heavy traffic and is very unsightly
as shown in photo 1 and photo 2.

Location Plan:

Blind Corner -
Actual point of

pedestrian/cycle
conflict

Page 85




Photo of Existing Location:

Photo 1 Photo 2

Corner looking from Green End Road Corner looking towards Green End Road
towards Milton Road from Milton Road

Page 86



Scheme Number:

15

Scheme Title:

Riverside Bridge Community Noticeboard

Scheme Description:

Lockable community notice board to be provided next to the
Riverside bridge. The Riverside Bridge is a key entrance/exit point
to East Chesterton and community events could benefit from having
an extra advertising point.

Promoted by:

Ward Councillors

Ward:

East Chesterton

Estimated Budget:

£2500

Risks to Delivery:

Further Scheme Information:

Lockable community sign taking the form of a casing which
opens/closes. Volunteers have been put forward to be custodians of
the key. Will help community groups advertise their events.

Location Plan:

Approximate Position of
Community Noticeboard

>/

Overhead Photo of Existing

Location:

Approximate Position of
Community Noticeboard




Scheme Number:

16

Scheme Title:

Kinross Area — New Benches

Scheme Description:

Two new benches to be provided for elderly residents. Two
locations have been suggested.

Promoted by:

Ward Councillors

Ward:

East Chesterton

Estimated Budget:

£2500

Risks to Delivery:

Scheme Subject to consultation, consultation would need to be
undertaken before proceeding.

Further Scheme Information:

Possible positions shown on the location plan and photos below
(Bench position 1 and 2).

Location Plan:

.'.‘
PR

3 A\
i Bench Position 2}‘,‘ “
o\ N ""

D W

D

Bech Position 1 Location ‘

Bench Posiion 2 Location

Page 88




Scheme Number:

17

Scheme Title:

Hanging Baskets, High Street Chesterton

Scheme Description:

New hanging baskets on High Street,
Chesterton

Promoted by:

Ward Councillors

Ward:

East Chesterton

Estimated Budget:

£5,954

Risks to Delivery:

Further Scheme Information:

Page 89




'Sselb 0] pauJnjal alenbs
ay1 91| p|nom sjuapisay “liedalsip
10 9)elS B Ul aJe yoiym sauojsaned

uwinINy 8y} ul S}JI0m ay} 1no BulAlies 0] maia sobpaH| siofouno)| pue Buhueld sey unoY Jsisiel) iy HNoY Jsysiel)
B UM €10z AINf Ul usyeuspun ag 0} UOIB)NSUOD| €10z uwniny 000‘S sBury pJepr| -9€ pue g-| usamiaq ul alenbs ay || 1e juswajelsulal ssei|/
[1ouNo) AJuno) sobpaH| sJ0jj1ouno) subis paisamod Jejos|  [0oyog sebpaH sbury
allysabpuque) Aq pajuswajdwi 8q 0} swWayds ol=Nl 0006 sbuny pJepn ‘subis Buiuiem |0oyos aAoRIBIUI[  BPISINO SAY PIBYYMON|9
[1ouno) AJuno) sebpaH| sJ0jj1ouno) subis pasamod Jejos |00YOS Jouey
allysabpuque) Aq pajuswa|dwi 8q 0} swWayods 291 000‘6 sbury piep ‘subis Buluiem |[00YDS BANOBIB)U| apISINO peoy Ainquy|g
sylom Bunueld
‘uayelepun aq o} ||is uoualsayn| slojouno)d Y PEOY PUB}0OS pue aueT uolun peoy puepoos
sylom Bunueld ‘paoejdas usaq sey youag bunsixg| €10z uwniny 000V 1se] piep J0 uonoun( ‘youaq jJuswaoe|day pue sueT uolun|@
®))
O]
"paj|ejsul 8q 0} SMOJ|IM SHUYAA JUBIT @)
‘poalbe "'S9YOUaQ Mau JO uone|eisul 8y}l seyouag pue bBunue|d mua
u2aqg aAeY suoliisod 80U0 pajeISuUl 8q 0} Sayosuaq uouelsay)| slojiouno)| pue sMojjIpn SUYAA Buisn AembBulieH oa1] - AembBuieH
Mau ‘parejdwod usaq aney sylom bunue|d a1 | €10z 1snbny 000‘v 1se] pJepn | uousysay) 3se3 ayy uo Bunueld sai ) uouslsay) ijsej|¢
uolne}nsuo) alignd Buimojjoy uoualsay)| sJojjiouno) ‘Bunyied uonqiyo.d Bunjied
uoddns Jo oe| B 0} anp pjoy uo Ajuaiin) awayosg V/N 000‘S 1se] piepn| ebian uqiyoud 03 0¥ 10 uoonpouy| abiap Aepp [epusyi|z
uouaIsay)
"MOJ|0} [|IM SYIom 8bpay ‘Aemispun 1S9\
Apualino awayos AemajoAd ay] U0 SHIOM ‘Bwsayds €102 /sebpaH| sJojjiouno) Ausianiun ayl Aq uoneAouay
Juswanoldwi Aema[oAd yjim pasaalep aq o] | Jaqueydeg 000‘9 sbury piepn| paumo abpay Buisixs Jo uoneaouay | abpaH aue] sweyumoq||
3
pajoadxy j9bpng Aq
sjuUaWIWo) uonsjdwoy | panoiddy piep pajowoud uondiosag sawayos 9J}1 awayos 'ON

O XIAN3ddV

S3INTHOS dI3 ONILSIX3 40 SSTUO0™d




Page 91

"991} bunsixa ay)
punoJe Aemjoo} ay} 0} sjuswarosdul
Joulw pue ssaooe yled Jeds do

-02 8y} 0} abueyo a|qissod e ‘peoy syuswanoiduw|
"JNO paled aq usy} ||Im uoualsay)| slojouno) uouelsay) 0} Jeau yjedjoo} ayj jo }o81)S HaqloH/peoy
uoneynsuod pue paubisap Bulag Apusiind sawayos| ¢L0g uwniny 000‘8 1S9\ piepn| Buluspim ayy epnjoul sjuswaaociduw| uouslsayD|g
3
pajoadx3y j3obpng Aq
sjuswwon uonsjdwon | paroiddy piep pajowo.id uonduosag awayoss 9})1L dwayoss ‘ON

O XIAN3ddV




APPENDIX D

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

As agreed by the Executive Councillor (Environment) on the 18" March

2003 with amendments agreed on the 22" March 2005.

Essential Criteria:

Schemes should have a direct, lasting and noticeable improvement to
the appearance of a street or area.

Schemes should be publicly visible and accessible.

Should the scheme be on private land, the owners’ permission must be
granted — unless there are exceptional circumstances by which the
Area Committee may wish to act unilaterally, with full knowledge and
responsibility for the implication of such action.

Schemes must provide low future maintenance costs.

Desirable criteria:

Active involvement of local people.

The project will benefit a large number of local people.

‘Partnership’ funding.

The potential for inclusion of employment training opportunities.

Ease and simplicity of implementation.

Potential for meeting key policy objectives (e.g. improving community
safety or contributing to equal opportunities).

Ineligible for funding:

Where a readily available alternative source of funding is available.
Revenue projects.

Schemes that have already received Council funding (unless it can be
clearly demonstrated that this would not be ‘top up’ funding).

Works that the City or County Council are under an immediate
obligation to carry out (e.g. repair of dangerous footways)

Play areas (S106 funding should pay for this resource)

Other Information:

The following categories of work were agreed as being eligible for funding by
the Area Committees:

e Works in areas of predominately council owned housing

e Works to construct lay-bys where a comprehensive scheme can be
carried out which not only relieves parking problems but achieves
environmental improvements.

C:\Users\CARDO1 G\Documents\GroupWise\ELICR&Q@I@Q?IA.dOC



SUMMARY OF MINOR TRO/HIGHWAY SCHEMES APPENDIX E
NORTH AREA BUDGET: £14,000
Traffic Regulation Orders Implemented
No. Scheme Title Scheme Description Ward Status Final Cost Comments
£
1 Fortescue Road Double yellow lines extended on both sides|  Arbury Completed £ 315.35 |Traffic order made and double
past the entrance to Alex Wood House yellow lines implemented on site.
2 | Molewood Close (Two | Double yellow lines on both sides of two Arbury Completed £ 573.56 |Traffic order made and double
Bends) bends on Molewood Close yellow lines implemented on site.
3 St. Albans Road, Single yellow line to address issues with Arbury Completed £ 1,195.21 |Traffic order made and double
school parking and extension of the double and single yellow lines
yellow from the mini roundabout implemented on site.
SUB-TOTAL | £ 2,084.12
Traffic Regulation Orders In Progress
No. Scheme Title Scheme Description Ward Status Estimated Comments
Budget £
1 |Woodhead Drive Proposed Double Yellow Lines on both Kings Ongoing £ 800.00 [Consultation has been
Traffic Regulation sides of Milton Road between Robert Hedges undertaken and Traffic
Order Jennings Close/Hopkins Close. Restriction has been advertised.
Objections received have been
referred to the County Council to
resolve.
SUB-TOTAL | £ 800.00
Proposed Traffic Regulation Order Schemes
No. Scheme Title Scheme Description Ward Status Estimated Comments
Budget £
1 |Jermyn Close Proposed Double Yellow Lines within the Arbury New £ 600.00 [Informal consultation to be
turning head to address issues with access. undertaken in the first instance
by Ward Councillors.
2 |Dowding Way Proposed Double yellow Lines to improve Arbury New £ 600.00 [Site meeting to arranged to look
assess for larger vehicles. at the issue in the first instance.
3 |Brimley Road Proposed Double yellow Lines to improve Arbury New £ 600.00 [Proposal to be developed
assess for larger vehicles at various further. Suggested layout shown
junctions. in Scheme Number 3 of
Appendix B
4 |Hawthorn Way Proposed Double yellow Lines to Between West New £ 600.00 |Proposal to be developed
No.s 11-37 & the radius to Chestnut Chesterton further.
Grove.improve assess for larger vehicles.
5 | Ascham Road Proposed Double yellow Lines on one side West New £ 600.00 [Proposal to be developed
of the road to improve assess for larger Chesterton further.
vehicles.
6 |Herbert Street Proposed Double yellow Lines from its West New £ 600.00 [Proposal to be developed
junction with Milton Road to No. 50 Herbert | Chesterton further.
Street to improve assess for larger
vehicles.
7 |Green's Road Proposed Double yellow Lines on both West New £ 600.00 [Proposal to be developed
sides from its junction with Victoria Road to | Chesterton further.
improve assess for larger vehicles.
8 [Fallowfields (Junction |Proposed Double Yellow lines at the East New £ 600.00 [Proposal to be developed
nearest to No 24 and junction to prevent vehicles parking on the | Chesterton further.
No 30) corner.
SUB-TOTAL | £ 4,800.00
SUMMARY:
BUDGET AVAILABLE TO
SPEND ON NEW TRO £ 11,115.88
SCHEMES
ESTIMATED COST OF
PROPOSED TRO SCHEMES | £ 4,800.00
SHOWN ABOVE
£ 6,315.88 ‘

d:a?j%GEgﬁgMAINING ‘




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



Agenda ltem 8

20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons)Final

llb\. Cambridge City Council Item
Q&
To: North Area Committee
Report by: Simon Payne — Director of Environment
Relevant scrutiny Environment 01/08/13
committee:
Wards affected: Arbury, East Chesterton, King’'s Hedges and West
Chesterton

Cambridge 20mph Project — Phase 1 Consultation Results

1. Executive summary

This report sets out the outcomes of the Cambridge 20mph Project
Phase 1 (North Phase) public consultation and requests that North
Area Committee provide recommendations on how the project
should be progressed.

2. Recommendations
The North Area Committee is asked:
2.1 to note the consultation outcomes;

2.2 to provide comments and recommendations to the Executive
Councillor for Planning and Climate change (Councillor Tim
Ward) and the Environment Scrutiny Committee at which a
final decision on potential implementation of the project will
be made. Specifically:

i) Whether to introduce a 20mph Ilimit on the
unclassified roads in the North Phase area

i) Whether to introduce a 20mph limit on all/none/some
of the C Class roads within the North Phase area

BISHO1B Psagae o5 7/23/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

3. Background

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.4

In July 2011, a motion to Council was agreed that requested
the Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change
(Clir Tim Ward) to evaluate existing 20mph schemes in
Cambridge and where appropriate, consult on expansion of
schemes. Support and commitment from Cambridgeshire
County Council was secured, and potential project scope
and resourcing were investigated, which culminated in
Council Budget funding bids for ‘the Cambridge City 20mph
Zones Project’. A capital bid for £400,000 to cover works was
agreed in February 2012. A further revenue Priority Policy
Fund bid for £59,800 to cover staffing was also approved.

Both funding bids stipulate that the project should have a
citywide approach. As such the project considers all
appropriate roads within the Cambridge City Boundary where
it is appropriate/feasible to introduce a self enforcing 20mph
limit. Works will be subject to agreement with the Highway
Authority (Cambridgeshire County Council).

Due to the size of the project, it has been divided into four
separate phases, reflecting existing area committee
boundaries. It is intended that each phase be progressed
separately and brought to the relevant area committee for
recommendation.

The project aims to:

provide conditions that are conducive to an increase in active
travel modes such as walking and cycling and encourage a
modal shift towards these modes

reduce the severity of personal injury accidents (PIAs) that
occur on the city’s road network

reduce noise and air pollution levels

The project is reflected in the City’s current policy context
including strategic objective PST4.4 in the Planning and
Sustainable Transport Portfolio Plan 2012-13. The extension
of 20mph zones is also included within the Council’s Annual
Statement 2012-13 and contributes to the “Vision for the
City’. The project will help to achieve objectives set out in the

BISHO1B Paga@e96 7/23/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

3.5

3.6

council’s Medium Term Strategy, which includes an action to
‘Improve facilities for pedestrians, cyclists and public
transport users, including consideration of extending areas
with a 20mph limit'. In addition forthcoming Climate Change
Strategy 2012-2016 includes an action to ‘ldentify
opportunities in the development of the Cambridge Local
Plan to minimise traffic generation and promote public
transport, cycling and walking'.

The project was taken to the Environment Scrutiny
Committee on 15/01/13, at which approval was provided for
the project:

Programme (see Appendix A)

Governance/Decision making process

Board terms of reference

Phasing

Engagement/Consultation to commence for the first
phase

Approval was also provided for the following estimated initial
project spending:
e Automatic Traffic Counts (ATCs) for project baseline
data collection — < £12,000
e Project wide Engagement/Consultation Activities —
< £50,000

The project was taken to the North Area Committee on
21/03/13 to provide comments on the proposed consultation
arrangements for Phase 1. Comments were received and the
consultation materials amended.

4. Consultation Process

4.1

Public consultation for phase one took place between
13/05/13 and 05/07/13 (8 weeks). The consultation was
undertaken via the delivery of a consultation pack containing
an explanatory leaflet and freepost return questionnaire to all
addresses located within the Phase 1 area along with
statutory consultees (17,321 addresses). The consultation
pack can be viewed at Appendix B.

BISHO1B Page 97 7/23/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

4.2

4.3

4.4

Consultees were provided with two options to respond.
Either via an on-line questionnaire hosted via the City
Council website, or by filling in the questionnaire delivered in
the pack and returning it via the freepost address. In order to
identify any consultation responses that were returned by
respondees from outside the consultation area, each
questionnaire included a unique code, which also needed to
be quoted when filling in the on-line questionnaire. As such it
has been possible to identify responses received from those
outside the consultation area. The code has also allowed for
any multiple responses from the same address within the
consultation area to be identified. Following analysis it has
been found that no one address submitted more than 5
responses and the mix of responses from any one of these
single addresses does not suggest an attempt to swing the
overall consultation outcomes.

During the consultation period two exhibitions were set up
which provided additional information about the project.
These were located at the Arbury Community Centre and at
the Customer Service Centre in Mandela House. Both
exhibitions were in place from the 29/05/13 to 01/07/13. They
consisted of three large exhibition boards and comments
sheets with a drop box. Two public drop-in sessions also
took place at Arbury Community Centre during the
consultation period, at which council officers were present to
answer questions. One during the day on Saturday 15/06/13
and the other in the evening of Wednesday 19/06/13. The
project was also represented at the Arbury Carnival on
08/06/13 with the project exhibition and a council officer
present.

PDF copies of the exhibition materials and the consultation
leaflet are available on the project web page, and were also
distributed in hard copy format to schools, libraries, and
community centres within the phase area. The consultation
was further publicised via a press release, tweets, articles
submitted for inclusion in local newsletters such as the Kings
Hedges Community News and leaflets distributed to local
health centres.

BISHO1B Paga@e98 7/23/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

5. Consultation Outcomes

5.1 A total of 4245 responses to the consultation were received.
Of these 3850 (90.7%) were received from addresses within
the consultation area, and 395 were received from outside
the consultation area. Of those from within the consultation
area 3752 were from different addresses. This provides an
overall response rate of: 21.7%

5.2 Following analysis the results have been summarised into
numerical and chart based formats. These are available to
view at Appendix C.

5.3 Overall the consultation results indicate that the majority of
respondees:

- are in favour of the 20mph limit on the unclassified roads
in the Phase 1 area (63%)

- are in favour of 20mph on Chesterton High Street (57%)
and Green End Road (51%)

- are not in favour of 20mph on Gilbert Road (54%) and
Kings Hedges Road (57%)

More respondees are in favour of 20mph on Arbury Road
(49%) than against (47%), however this is not an overall
majority, with 4% having no opinion. However, looking at
responses from within the consultation area only, this
changes to 50% yes, 47% no, and 3% no opinion.

5.4 Responses received from statutory consultees are set out in

table 1 below. The question numbers refer to those on the
Consultation Questionnaire at Appendix B.

BISHO1B Fpaw 99 7/23/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Table 1: Responses from Statutory Consultees

Q3
IO ®

2292 2@ |n8 X

Oo |2 |0F |0 ® 1as

vc Do 95 | Q Q

Q3 3 g_ o5 | I'DI'I 8 »

Consultee Q1 | Q2 23 a Comments

Cam Sight Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes| Yes |-
Disability Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes|Yes |-
Cambridgeshire
Milton  Parish| No | No | No | No | No | No | No |-
Council
Cambridgeshire | No | No | No | No | No | No | No | Additional
Chambers  of road traffic
Commerce restrictions

are not good
for business.
- Road
congestion
prevents
speeding
generally
and therefore
20mph  limit
is
unnecessary.
- Cost of
installation
and policing
will  outway
benefits as

evidenced
from trials
Cambridge 20 |Yes|Yes|Yes|Yes| No |Yes| No |-
Sense
Stagecoach Yes|Yes| No | No | No | No | No |-
East
Sustrans Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | Yes | See below

Comment from Sustrans:
I'm commenting on behalf of Sustrans, the transport charity
which works with the County Council on practical schemes to

BISHO1B Pag@éb@o 7/23/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

9.5

5.6

5.6

enable people to travel in ways which benefit their health and
the environment. 1) Gilbert Road, Arbury Road, Kings
Hedges Road and others carry young people on their way to
school. 20mph limit on all these streets will encourage pupils,
students and everyone else to cycle or walk instead of being
driven, or waiting for a bus. 2) The more complete the "low
speed network" can be made the more it will encourage
cycling for short and medium length journeys, thus 20mph on
the 5 named streets will back up the good work done on
lesser streets. If however it is decided not to lower speed
limits on any of them it is essential that safe cycle routes
segregated from motor and pedestrian movements should be
installed along them. 3) It is evident from the map that the
principal streets (Milton Rd, Histon Rd, A, B-roads etc) are
fed by the streets where the 20mph limit is proposed. Thus if
they retain present speed limits it is important that safe cycle
routes along them, segregated from motor and pedestrian
traffic must be created, to gain the full benefit of the
proposals.

Responses were also received in letter format from the
Police (Appendix D) and the Cyclists Touring Club
(Appendix E)

In addition, e-petitions have been raised by members of the
public on both the City and County Council web sites which
ask for Victoria Road (currently a 30mph A Class road) to be
included in the project and made 20mph.

Following analysis of the responses, the following general
themes (in no particular order) have been identified from the
comments received:

e The project will not be/needs to be enforced to be
effective. The existing limit is not complied with. Drivers
will not obey the 20mph limit and the police will not
enforce it

e Enforcing the existing 30mph limit would be preferable.
20mph is too slow. 30mph is slow enough

e The existing 20mph limit in the city centre is ineffective

e 20mph will result in increased levels of non-compliance
with the speed limit, pollution, congestion, engine wear,
engine noise, fuel consumption, journey length and delay

BISHO1B Paagg 101 7/23/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

BISHO1B

The proposals will result in too much sign/line clutter

Any red surfacing should be minimised

It would be good if sign clutter could be
addressed/reduced as part of the project

The project needs to be clearly signed

The project will result in cycles overtaking vehicles, could
be dangerous

It would be difficult to pass cyclists at 20mph/take longer
to do so which will be more dangerous

Victoria Road should be included (most repeated
comment)

All roads in the city should be included. This would reduce
potential confusion/improve clarity, reduce sign clutter and
prevent potential traffic migration onto these roads

20mph is only required outside schools, particularly at
drop-off and pick up times

20mph should be timed to only be in force during the
day/the limit should revert to 30mph at quite times such as
overnight.

20mph would provide pedestrian or cyclists with a false
sense of security

At 20mph drivers would have to concentrate on their
speedo and signs rather than the road

20mph could result in increased ‘road rage’ with
dangerous overtaking

Too expensive — the funding would be better spent on
road maintenance.

The project will increase pressure on police resources
Pedestrians, cyclists, school pupils should pay more
attention/be provided with training on the road. There
should be more enforcement on these groups

It is not possible to exceed 20mph on many of the
unclassified roads/other roads at peak times anyway, so
why bother making them 20mph?

The consultation should have included details of potential
negative impacts of the project

Can a 25mph limit be introduced?

20mph will be bad for bus services — Stagecoach suggest
the no 17 route may be cut as a result of the project
20mph would be bad for taxi services with longer journey
times and increased fares

Pagedt@2 7/23/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

5.7

e 20mph on some roads will cause traffic to migrate onto
the roads that are not 20mph resulting in increased
congestion, speeding and accidents along these

¢ Needs physical measures to enforce the project

e The limit is not required where traffic calming is a in place

e Good to remove existing traffic calming if 20mph limit is
introduced

e The C roads have good sight lines, wide carriageways
and are arterial routes so 20mph is inappropriate

e This is an ‘anti-car’ proposal. Looks like a project to
increase revenue

e The project will go ahead whatever the results of the
consultation are

e It would be good to introduce speed cameras to enforce
the 20mph limit

e Relocatable vehicle activated signs are a good idea

e |t would be better to focus the funding of specific problem
locations rather than a blanket limit

e |If the roads are 20mph cyclists would be less likely to
cycling on the footway

e 20mph could provide improved community life

Respondent’s main reason for using the roads in Cambridge
has been analysed and summary charts illustrating this data
are provided at Appendix F.

6. Background papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this
report:

Responses to Cambridge 20mph Project, North Phase
Public Consultation

Cambridge City Council, Environment Scrutiny Committee
Report — Cambridge 20mph Project
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk//documents/g714/Public
%20reports%20pack%2015th-Jan-
2013%2017.00%20Environment%20Scrutiny%20Committee.
pdf?T=10

Cambridge 20mph Project — Phase 1 Consultation Pack —
Please contact the author for a PDF copy

BISHO1B Psaga@ 103 7/23/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

e Department for Transport Local Transport Note 1/07 — Traffic
Calming -
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/atta
chment_data/file/3811/Itn-1-07.pdf

e Department for Transport Draft Speed Limit Circular July
2012 — Setting Local Speed Limits —
http://assets.dft.gov.uk/consultations/dft-2012-32/setting-
local-speed-limits.pdf

e Cambridge City Council Budget Setting Report
http://mgsgqlmh01/documents/s8599/BSR%20Version%20Ve
r%201.1%2021%20Dec%202011 _1.pdf

e Planning and Sustainable Transport Portfolio Plan 2012-13
http://mgsglmh01/documents/s8526/PST Planning and
Sustainable Transport Portfolio Plan 2012-13.pdf

e Cambridge City Council Medium Term Financial Strategy
2011/12 — 2015/16
http://mgsglmh01/documents/s13580/MTS Version 2
Executive - FINAL 2.pdf

e Cambridge City Council Climate Change Strategy 2012-2016
http://mgsglmh01/documents/s13710/Appendix A Cambridge
City Council Climate Change Strateqy.pdf

7. Appendices

Appendix A — 20mph Project Programme — Phase 1 in Detail
Appendix B — Consultation Pack

Appendix C — Consultation Results Summaries - (a) Charts and (b)
Numerical Tables

Appendix D — Consultation Response Letter from Police

Appendix E — Consultation Response Letter from CTC

Appendix F — Summary Charts illustrating respondent’s main
reason for using the Cambridge Road network

8. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the
report please contact:

Author’'s Name: Ben Bishop or Andy Preston
Author’s Phone Number: 01223 457385 or 01223 457271
Author’s Email: ben.bishop@cambridge.gov.uk

BISHO1B Pag-‘@gim 7/23/2013



€Loc/ee/L 1| ebed gl0HSId

4 - P BT - a PO— eron e— g we  FEEETAERE L ey cunimond ol e e
- a ensavomg | |
122 |
a & [rrT—— {2z
[z |
I 'y s1ep10 oygeL psseug | se2 |
[ oce |
- - vonmmeuogvosms | 101
{ st |
. a TR
. ry vomis | |
(LT
- - nomgremg o]
E
-~ [rrT— [T
o |
- - T
[ oo |
- . sonsmsuoa comng [ 1|
{oee |
a a g pomegesoeovg o | ot |
~ ry comis [ |
[ s |
N nowzemg o |
{e2 |
- o womnusuen g | o |
pe P9 s19pI0 oje] Z eseud [su |
- [ree—
e vy uBys o pemisgaewsbebu3 g sseyg
ry P
i_ & mawy fpEngy
ke peanba y suopesec) fousbununs sEwspun
e napey
P
- P

4ous
R BufEus
[rr—

"

sbopeg sy s

sbyeg s senpoy

SR pue s sl By u

EEEg | a0

4 v e e

] 48 RN AU SIEpI0 sy
o

2 ey fyny
ovad! 2 6500 01 598 601 pu 1 amE L - 053

e ‘S @ 461U peinb) 50 o pue ety pUR pUB S
conz @ o8

29301000 w5 0913 sy - oV
DN 10 ey o pue Y P e Y Ny

Sr—

20 oo vmpnd g

ey vy erodons

om0 saiy pue ez

T g

om
painbe: se uodes stspin
o ooy e yuang

i

]

L eseug

u ‘283 10} oske yeip s1hwoo pus UL e
[EP—— ————-=pp—

s jo swm g ook
stequew prevgwes | osfold A
[ p——
[YS——p—y -

eoyed pue e m e e

[ ——)

I I NI

=
|z |
| oz |
Bupsayprogpeoy | 1t
epodes Aue st spu st preoq o

H
3

:

|lejeq ul | aseyd — awwelsbold 3oafoid ydwoz — v x.v:waad.

Jeulq (suod 1sod | aseyd) DVN - Moday aapiwwo) Alojenbay 108foid ydwog

Page 105



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Appendix B — Consultation Pack

Information Leaflet - Front Page
Our ref: 040-016 May 2013

r!.' Public Consultation

e Cambridge City-Wide 20mph Speed Limit — North Phase

CITY COUNCIL

Following requests from local residents, the council is proposing to reduce the speed limit
on shopping and residential roads. A 20mph limit would provide the following benefits:

¢ Road conditions that encourage and allow for more people to use sustainable
transport, such as walking and cycling, which has associated health and wellbeing
benefits;

+ Easier conditions for pedestrians to cross the road, particularly for children or the
elderly;

¢ A reduced amount of road noise generated by traffic in residential areas;
¢ Improved traffic flow, as it flows more smoothly through junctions at lower speeds;
¢ Reduced airborne pollution levels;

¢ Reduced severity of injuries sustained as a result of road accidents:- According to the
road safety charity ROSPA, studies have found that a pedestrian struck at 20mph has a
97% chance of survival; at 30mph the chances of survival fall to 80%

This leaflet outlines Cambridge City Council’s proposals for a City-Wide 20mph limit on
residential and shopping streets. Please read through the information in this leaflet and
respond to the consultation either by post, using the enclosed questionnaire (postage is
free) or on-line via an online questionnaire available at. cambridge gov.uk/20mph-speed-
limit. A letter and questionnaire is being sent to all addresses within the North Phase area.
The Closing date for responses is: 05/07/13

Due to its size, the project has been divided into four phases. The first Phase covers the
north area of Cambridge. Should this first phase receive a positive response further
consultations will take place across other areas of the city.

The proposals do not include any new speed humps, only new signs and road markings
installed in line with national regulations to make road users aware of the 20mph limit. The
project does not proposed to include the A and B classified roads as these are not currently
suited to 20mph. Please see the plan overleaf for more information on the roads proposed
to be changed from 30mph to a 20mph limit.

Proposed signs and 20mph ‘roundel’ road markings would be installed on entry into the
limit. Repeater signs and markings would be placed within the limit to remind road users of
the 20mph limit. Where new signs are installed, these would be placed on existing
lampposts or signposts wherever possible. Please see the back page of this leaflet for
examples of how the proposed 20mph limit signs and road markings could look.

Additional information including background data is available:

Please go to: cambridge.gov.uk/20mph-speed-limit. There will also be a public exhibition with
information boards and large format copies of the plans installed at the Arbury Community Centre
(Campkin Rd, Cambridge, CB4 2LD) from 29/05/13 to 01/07/13, Public drop-in sessions with
officers on hand to answer gquestions will also take place at the Arbury Community Centre on
15/06/13 from 10am to 4pm and on 18/06/13 from 4pm to 8pm. Information is also available at
other local community centres, libraries, schools and the City Council Customer Service Centre at
Mandela House (4 Regent Street, Cambridge, CB2 1BY).

No decision has been made, your views are important to the Council

Page 106



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Information Leaflet - Back Page

Example of how entry into the proposed 20mph on a more main road could look with a
20mph road marking ‘roundel’, some colored road surface and two 20mph Zone entry signs

Example of how entry into the proposed limit on a smaller road could look with a 20mph
roundel road marking and 20mph limit signs

If the proposed 20mph limit
is infroduced, 20mph
roundel road markings, and
repeater signs would be
installed. Wherever
possible the repeater signs
would be mounted on
existing lampposts or
signposts. Similar signs are
already in place in the city
centre such as on Silver
Street Bridge

As well as the signs
and road markings, it
is proposed to install
some moveable light
up signs. These
signs would detect
the speed of
approaching vehicles
and if required light
up to remind drivers
of the new speed
limit

The following are being consulted: All properties within the area shown on the plan, Local
and Statutory Groups including the Emergency Services, Public Transport Providers,
disability groups and Ward Councilors.

Consultation results will be available to view on the project webpage within one month
of the closing date: cambridge gov.uk/20mph-speed-limit

The outcome of this consultation will be presented to the North Area Committee on 01/08/13
and taken to the Environment Scrutiny Committee for a final decision on 08/10/13

For further information please Email: 20mph@cambridge.gov.uk or Call; 01223 457385

If you require this leaflet in larger print please telephone

01223 457385
‘Page 107



€10¢/L0/€C 1 :ON abed podey dOHSIgd

w,#r ‘1102 (0EL610001 .Sazﬂéfw%v%Tm.ﬁahﬂaf ...HM%J“:«%%S RIS
uopejInsuos siyy Kq pajoaye } 1 2 a0 e s s i SO gww%.,w ol i,mfw a.wmnh / .
speo. Buiddoys pue [enuspisal ay; [[e 40 3s1] [eaneqeydie LY gt MAG W A
ue 1oy asreuuoysanb inok jo ebed yoeq ay) ees aseald - 4 m \.\‘rw 0 SO w. e N gw fﬂ«
abalog Jo [ooyog Bupsixy  § w ..mﬁ » !.. W A ,‘\w& nﬁﬂrdm
soedg usalg Bunsixg \ 'Y 7 fp— : ‘ N N PN Ay
wf\ .\ _ | WSz N N s 5\@
108foud U} UM papNoul Jou speol sjeAld Y > m § “ i g ' vy JMM . &
N T o #neoy
waoss o o | 2R S F7 NPT P,
@yew A[JUB1iND JOU Op L2IYM SPEOJ 9S8y} UO SUOHIPUOD P ‘ovo rovinon L uﬁﬂ - -.9».\ wm s % e.a“dn”” \ %\ % Vi ,% %ﬁf.\_@&
Bupsixe 0} enp way uo pasodoud | pesds o} o X N s § ! A o L Ry &%
abueyo e 8By JOU Op UIUm SPEOY PaYISSE]D g pue v ,ww& o e m _ & f J m fc 3 w,« ~
& ’
uopejnsuod ‘ NoimaleEHD L O \ 51 d _ 4 A ;. % w —— .@ élf &
10 swooino ay) 0} eslgns ydwpg o) ydwgg woly pebueyo = = « « = / _\\\. = : .%J m . £ M -u q«.faﬁ: %
aq o) pasodoud speos Buiddoys pue [enuapIsa) UIEW 10N . o ¥l m A N ! i — g
NOR & N . 3 3 94 4
uonE}NSU02 390HENCLS Aty C ,w,wwm w0 A 3 \la.!e ¥ b5 Wm&& ¢ L M S
Jo Bwiooyno 8y 0} Palgns Jiuwi Ydwoz e ydwpog woy AT IR i & % W\. B ) oy, R B
pebueyo aq o} pesedoid speos Buiddoys pue |ejuspisey o | B a9 - P a»o,w:m , L ", o n\
1080ud ydwz apIM-A1ID 8y} JO | 8SBUd JO AIBPUNOH  ee— &% , Pa Jf J.o ,,ﬁ\@ Wv \&m«? % o, E.Hl..!% ﬂ p.
S 4 , , NN NN Vs A e, [ y
\ ‘ 1 . Y N, , s M g =8 o %, &
f Y Ve / , -y % e Joo
" o , . , S -
e ' . “ o e, 8] ]
sy Af % ./ % WA\ v ‘ #
© N W p. ‘
g, T ™~ y & 4
h _ .
o™ 7 /] y prid
% " \ { M\.\x@@%‘t&‘f& \ g m%k
N £ €.\ 7|
éw.h i \\ \ 4...%\\\. \éﬂ&l\\. @.@w
LA 1 \ % ¥ o X y
/[ | volwves \ - ’
[ u%ﬁ.ﬂu ,.,,.,
I J 7EE) R &
£ § // L~ 4 /.\ g
4 f#« &
oy [ 7
J ; N
o, § ; 7 2 %../
4 P
J ™ %
/ 4 ~
4
/ 7 S
/ / N, “lgm N i
V4 HnouS % 5 " A 3 « G
7 {4 ;e NE ﬁwﬁf Mww,, 4 ~J{
; N f A 3
/ P Lo WAl - o7 e S §
/ 5 At L9750 s
oy 4 ' \% e m E o : & g
- . o &
¥4 gl T s \
4 Fi e R ,.aﬁ._.mwueth Y5 ne
/ S avod - )
\\ P 2 .%% m g anvtv«,. w M,m By — % I —
, g ST A
SOg S T 3y
. i 3 B i
o s / e ¥l R

UB[d UONJE}NSUOY) ‘'Sobeqd a1jua)) — Jo[JEo ] UOIJeWIoU]

Jeulq (suod 1sod | aseyd) DVN - Moday aapiwwo) Alojenbay 108foid ydwog

Page 108




20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Questionnaire — Front

Our ref: 040-016 BB1@© May 2013
P Consultation Questionnaire
. \1 s Proposed Cambridge City-Wide 20mph Speed Limit — North Phase
CITY COUNCIL
ADDRESS : CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL :
. Environment and Planning
| Policy and Projects Division '
i FREEPOST ANG 6390 | —
| Guildhall .
1 Cambridge I
; CB23YA :
Dear SirMadam, T EoEEEEEEEEEEEE

Please read the enclosed information and respond either by filling in an on-line questionnaire at:
cambridge.gov.uk/20MPH (quoting the code at top of this page) or by filling in this form and
posting it to the Freepost address in the dashed box above.

Please respond, no decision has been made and your opinion is essential to the council’s
decision-making process. The closing date for responses is: 05/07/13

Do you agree in principle with 20mph speed limits on residential and shopping roads in
Cambridge?
YES [ | NO [ ] NO OPINION | |

Do you agree with installing the proposed 20mph limit on the roads coloured in with solid blue
lines on the consultation plan? (if ‘No’ please provide details in the comments section below)

YES [ ] NO [ | NO OPINION | |

Do you agree with installing the proposed 20mph limit on each of the more main roads that are
coloured in with red dashed lines on the consultation plan?

Green End Road
King’s Hedges Road

YES NO

Arbury Road D D
Chesterton High Street D D
Gilbert Road [] []
] []

L] L]

Thank you for taking the time to provide the council with your views
Your response is protected by the Data Protection Act and will only be used by Cambridge City
Council. Multiple responses from businesses or residences will be accepted

BBISHOP Report Paﬂye[\tj)'é iog 23/07/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Questionnaire - Back

An alphabetical list of all the shopping and residential roads affected by Question 2

Abbots Close
Abercorn Place
Acrefield Drive
Acton Way
Akeman Street
Albemarle Way
Albert Street
Alex Wood Rd
Alpha Road
Amwell Road
Anglers Way
Apollo Way
Apthorpe Way
Aragon Close
Arbury Court
Arden Road
Armitage Way
Arthur Street
Ascham Road
Ashcroft Court
Ashfield Road
Ashvale
Atherton Close
Atkins Close
Augustus Close
Aylesborough Cls
Aylestone Road
Bagot Place
Banff Close
Barnard Way
Basset Close
Bateson Road
Bayford Place
Beales Way
Belvoir Road
Bermuda Road
Bermuda Terrace
Birch Close
Blackberry Way
Blackhall Road
Blackthorn Cls
Blanford Walk
Borrowdale
Bourne Road
Brackley Close
Bramley Court
Brierley Walk
Briggs Passage
Brimley Road
Broad Meadows
Brownlow Road
Buchan Street
Butler Way
Cadwin Field
Caledon Way
Callander Close
Cam Causeway
Cameron Road
Campkin Road
Camside
Cannon Court

BBISHOP

Capstan Close
Caravere Close
Carisbrooke Road
Carlton Way
Carlyle Road
Cavesson Court
Chancellors Walk
Chapel Street
Cheney Way
Chesterfield Road
Chesterton Hall Crsnt
Chesterton Road (E)
Chestnut Grove
Church Strest
Clare Street
Cobholm Place
Cockerell Road
College Fields
Colwyn Close
Consul Court
Cook Close
Corona Road
Courtney Way
Cowley Park
Cowley Road (N)
Craister Court
Crathern Way
Crispin Close
Crowland Way
Cunningham Close
Cutter Ferry Close
Daisy Close
Dalton Square
Darvin Drive

De Freville Avenue
Dowding Way
Downhams Lane
Dundee Close
Durnford Way
East Hertford Street
Eastfield
Edinburgh Road
Elder Close
Ellesmere Road
Ellison Close
Elmfield Close
Elmfield Road
Emperor Court
Ennisdale Close
Enniskillen Road
Erasmus Close
Essex Close
Evergreens
Fairbairn Road
Fallowfield

Fen Road

Ferrars Way

Ferry Lane

Ferry Path

Finch Road
Fisher Street

Fordwich Close
Fortescue Road

Larkin Close
Lauriston Place

Forum Court Lavender Road
Franks Lane Lawrence Way
Fraser Road Laxton Way
Frenchs Road Legate Walk
Gainsborough Close Legion Court
Garden Walk Lents Way
Garry Drive Leys Avenue
George Nuttall Cls  Leys Road
George Street Lilley Close

Gilbert Close
Gladeside
Grasmere Gardens
Grayling Close
Green Park
Greens Road
Grieve Court
Gunning Way
Gurney Way
Hale Avenue
Hale Street
Hall Farm Road
Hamilton Road
Hanson Court
Harding Way
Harris Road

Linden Close
Livermore Close
Logans Way

Long Reach Road
Longworth Avenue
Lovell Road
Lovers Walk
Lynfield Court
Lynfield Lane
Magrath Avenue
Maic Road
Maitland Avenue
Maltsters Way
Manhattan Drive
Mansel Way
Maple Close

Harvey Goodwin Av Marfield Court

Harvey Goodwin Ct
Haviland Way
Hawkins Road
Hawthormn Way
Hazelwood Close
Heath House
Herbert Street
Hercules Close
Hertford Street
Highfield Avenue
Highworth Avenue
Hilda Street
Holland Street
Hopkins Close
Howgate Road
Humberstone Road
Humphreys Road
Hurrell Road
Hurst Park Avenue
Inverness Close
|zaak Walton Way
Jackson Road
Jedburgh Close
Jermyn Close
Jolley Way
Kendal Way

Kent Way
Kilmaine Close
Kimberley Road
Kinross Road
Kirkby Close
Kirkwood Road
Laburnum Close

Mariners Way
Markham Close
Martingale Close
Martins Stile Lane
Mays Way

Mere Way
Metcalfe Road
Midhurst Close
Midwinter Place
Minerva Way
Molewood Close
Moncrieff Close
Montague Road
Montfort Way
Montgomery Road
Montrose Close
Moore Close
Moertlock Avenue
Moss Bank
Moyne Close
Mulberry Close
Neptune Close
Nicholson Way
Northfield Avenue
Northumberland Cls
Nuffield Close
Nuffield Road
Nuns Way

Oak Tree Avenue
Orchard Avenue
Pakenham Close
Tweedsmuir Crt
Union Lane

ReportiageM 16

Pavilion Court
Pearl Close
Pearmain Court
Pelham Court
Pentlands Close
Perse Way
Pippin Drive
Plum Tree Cls
Pretoria Road
Primary Court
Primrose Street
Rackham Close
Ramsden Square
Redfern Close
Ribston Way
Robert Jennings Cls
Roland Close
Roman Courts
Roseford Road
Roxburgh Road
Russet Court
Rutland Close
Sackville Close
Sandwick Close
Scarsdale Close
Scotland Close
Scotland Road
Searle Street
Sherbourne Close
Sherbourne Court
Shirley Grove
Somerset Close
Somervell Court
Southside Court
Sovereign Place
Springfield Road
St Albans Road
St Andrews Road

St Catherines Square

St Kilda Avenue
St Lukes Street
Stirling Close
Stott Gardens
Stretten Avenue
Sturmer Close
Sunset Square
Tedder Way
Temple Court
The Beeches
The Green

The Grove

The Pulley
Thirleby Close
Thistle St
Topham Way
Trafalgar Road
Trafalgar Street
Tredegar Close
Tribune Court
Verulam Way
Victoria Avenue

23/07/2013

Victoria Park
Villa Court
Wagstaff Close
Walker Court
Walnut Tree Wy
Warren Road
Water Street
Wavell Way
Whitfield Close
White Rose Walk
Whytford Close
Wilding Walk
Wiles Close
Wilson Close
Windlesham Cls
Woburn Close
Woodhead Drive
Woodhouse Way
Wynborne Close
Wynford Way



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Consultation Pack Envelope

If undelivered please return to: e
Cambridge 20mph Project Officer ‘oec uﬁ@ e
Cambridge City Council . o mail &
Floor 2, Rm 18,

The Guildhall .’q ,’ c9 10017
Cambridge -

CB2 3QJ

AR

L] Important - 20mph speed limit consultation affecting your area
S Please Read

C 1;!]!N§]1

BBISHOP Report Papye[\ﬁ'é 111 23/07/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Appendix C — Consultation Results Summaries
(a) Charts

Overall Consultation Results — 4245 responses received in total

Do you agree in principle with 20mph speed Do you agree with installing the proposed 20mph
limits on residential and shopping roads in limiton the roads coloured in with solid blue
) Cambridge? lines (unclassified) on the consultation plan?
81

117

2% 29,

H Yes H Yes
® No = No
¥ No Opinion = No Opinion
Do you agree with installing the proposed 20mph limit on each of the more main (C class)
roads that are coloured in with red dashed lines on the consultation plan?
2084 (49%)
Arbury Road 1979 (£7%)
2408({57%)
High Street Chesterton 1667 (3
HYes
Gi bert Road 2280(54%)
® No
 No Opinion
21/2(41%)
Green End Road 877 (44%)
Kings Hedges Road 2446 (57%)
T T
0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000

Please tick the box which best describes your main reason for
using the roads in Cambridge

8] 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000

Resident # 3924(92%
Commuter 112 (3%

Shopping | 24(<1%)

Leisure/Tourism | 15 (<1%)
School Run | 13 (<1%)

Visiting Friends/Family | 12 («1%)

Other F 145 (3%)

BBISHOP Repor}j’aqg%Ni:fé 23/07/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Pie Charts for question: “Do you agree with installing the proposed 20mph limit on each of the
more main (C class) roads that are coloured in with red dashed lines on the consultation plan?”

Arbury Road 17¢ High Street Chesterton
182 4%
4%
W Yes HYes
® No = No
# No Opinien = No Opinion
Gilbert Road Green End Road
179 196
4% 5%
uYes mYes
= No ® Mo
= No Opinion = No Opinion

109 Kings Hedges Road
5%

BBISHOP Report Papyd\@‘e1§_13

mYes

m No

' No Opinion
23/07/2013




20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Consultation results from inside the consultation area — 3850 responses received in total. Of
these 3752 from individual addresses
(21.7% response rate from 17,321 consultation letters posted)

Do you agree in principle with 20mph speed limits Do you agree with installing the proposed 20mph
on residential and shopping roads in Cambridge? limit on roads coloured in with solid blue lines
{unclassified roads) on the consultation plan?
71 104
2% 3%
mves
m No
mves
Dol
= No Opinion 8 NG
u No Opinion

Do you agree with installing the proposed 20mph limit on each of the more main (C Class) roads
that are coloured in with red dzshed lines on the consultation plan?

|
1919(50%)
Arbury Road 1812 (47%)
119 (3%
2218(58%)
High Street Chesterton 1524 (40%)
108 (2%)

1631 (42% mYes
Gilnert Road 2099 (55%)
120 (3%) = No
x 3ig
1999 (52%) Mo Opinion
Green End Road 1720 (45%)
131(3%)

. 1462 (38%
Kings Hedges Road 2253(59%)
125(2%)

500 1000 1500 2000 2500

.

Please tick the box which best describes your main reason for
using the roads in Cambridge

0 1000 2000 3000 4000

Resident GRS

Commuter 58 (1%)

Shopping 12 (<1%)
Leisure/Tourism | 6 (<1%)
School Run | 9 (<1%)

Visiting Friends/Family | 5 (<1%)

Other F?G [29)

BBISHOP Repor}j’aqg%Ni:ﬁ 23/07/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Pie Charts for question: “Do you agree with installing the proposed 20mph limit on each of the
more main (C class) roads that are coloured in with red dashed lines on the consultation plan?”

Arbury Road 108 High Street Chesterton
119 3%
EYes mYes
B No m No
= No Opinion 1 No Opinion
Gilbert Road Green End Road
120 121
% 3% 4
mYes H Yes
= No ® No
u Mo Opinion = Mo Opinion
135 Kings Hedges Road
3%

o Yes
® No
= No Op nion

BBISHOP Report Papyd\@e2115 23/07/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Consultation results from outside the consultation area — 395 responses received in total

Do you agree in principle with 20mph speed limits on
residential and shopping roads in Cambridge?

10
2%

Do you agree with installing the proposed 20mph
limit on the roads coloured in with solid blue lines
(unclassified) on the consultation plan?

13
3%

HYes
| Yes
= No
= No
1 No Opinion miii Opltiion
Do you agree with installing the proposed 20mph limit on each of the more main (C class)
roads that are coloured in with red dashed lines on the consultation plan?
165{42?&4
Arbury Road 167 (42%)
189 (48%)
High Street Chesterton
65 (16%)
mYes
Gilbert Road 179 (45%)
62 (16%) ®No
= No Opinion
43%)
Green End Road
Kings Hedges Road 192 (49%)
0 50 100 150 200 250

BBISHOP

0 50 100

Please tick the box which best describes your main reason
for using the roads in Cambridge

150 200 250 300

Resident

Commuter 54 (14%)

Shopping %)
Leisure/Tourism
School Run

Visiting Friends/Family

Other

69 (17%)

240 (61%)

Repor’FPa'xg%Ni:l?@

23/07/2013




20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Pie Charts for question: “Do you agree with installing the proposed 20mph limit on each of the
more main (C class) roads that are coloured in with red dashed lines on the consultation plan?”

HYes
= No
% No Opinion

BBISHOP Report Papyd\@‘e2317

23/07/2013

Arbury Road High Street Chesterton

W Yes HYes

= No ® No

= No Opinion ¥ No Opinion
Gilbert Road Green End Road

mYes B Yes

m No B Na

¥ No Opinion 1 No Opinion

Kings Hedges Road




€10¢/L0/€C 1 ‘ON abed poday dOHSI9d

iueid Zabpuquier) ul speol
2 : UCHEYNSUDD 24} Uo (payIssepun) saul anjq Guiddoys pue [equapisal uo s paads
peoy safipoH sbuny peoy pug usaig peoy HRqIo Uop3IsaYD 19a1S YbiH peoy Angry PIOS UM Ul pAMOJoD speol ot uo pu ydwgz  ydwgz qum sdouud w 3aiBe nok og
pasodaid ayj Guieisu ypm aaibe nok o]

ZUed UONEYNSUOD 3L U0 S3UI| PIUYSED D3l LJIM Ui pamojod 2. Jey) speal (ssep
7)) UIBLL DI0UW ) JO yaed uo jun| ydwpz pasodosd sy Bunpesun ypm acube nok o]

sueyd Zabpuguen) u speos
UCHEYNSUOD 31} uo (paYISSepUN) Saul aNjg Guiddoys pue [equapisal uo s paads
peoy sabpoy sbuny peoy pug usaug peoy paqgug uopRisay) 1P2ns ybiH peoy Angry DIOS LM Ul PAMOICD SPEo! a4 Uo i ydwigz  ydwgz qum aydouud w 2316 nok og
pasodoud 2y Buyeisu yym aaube nok og
Zued uogeyNSUDD Sy Lo SaUI| PAYSEP PAJ YA Ui PAUNOjod aUe Jey) speal (ssep
7)) UIBLL 210w 3y} Jo yoea uo punj yduwpg pasodosd sy Bunpeysun ypm aaube nok o]

EaIE UOIEYNSUDD apisul WOl Sasuodsay

iueyd abpuquien) u speol
it UDOEYNSUOD aU) Uo (passeoun) saul anjq Buiddoys pue [equapisal uo sl paads
peoy sabpoH sbuny peoy pug usaug peoy paqgpg uopRlsay) 1ans ybiH peoy Angry DIOS LM Ul PAMOICD SPEo! 3t Uo pul ydwigz  ydwipz yum aydouud w 32168 nok og
pasodad ayy Guneisu ypum aaibe nok oQ

Zuejd uoEYNSUDD 3U) U0 SIUI| PAYSEP P YJIM Ul PUN0J0D 2U. Jeuy) speal (ssep
7)) UIEL I 2U) Jo Y2 uo punj ydwpg pasodosd aup Bunpeysun ypm aaube nok o(g

EEENGE= N ETT)
Arewiwins synsas uoneynsue) - | #selyd 12efoid ydwgz =Bplugquen

sa|qe] [esuawiny (q)

[euld (suoD 1sod | aseyd) DVN - Lloday aapiwwon Aiojeinbay 1098loid ydwog

Page 118



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final
Appendix D — Consultation Response Letter from Police

ey
¥ -
B = m @ S ConsTABULAR

BEDFORDSHIRE POLICE
fighting crime. protecting the pubiic

Joint Protective Services Command

Mr Ben Bishop Date: 29 May 2013
Cambridge City Council

Environment and Planning Our Ref:

Policy and Projects Division

FREEPOST ANG 6390 Your Ref: 040-016
Guildhall

Cambridge

CB2 3YA

Consultation Questionnaire
Proposed Cambridge City Wide 20mph Speed Limit North Phase

Dear Ben,

Thank you for your consultation questionnaire concerning the above. Unfortunately a simple
yes / no / no opinion, answer will not adequately represent the views of Police.

The Department for Transport recently published guidance (DfT Circular 1/2013 Setting
local speed limits).

Highlights from that document include:-

Speed limits should be evidence led and self explaining.

They should encourage self compliance.

The guidance is to be used for setting all local speed limits.

Speed limits are only one element of speed management.

Local speed limits should not be set in isolation.

They should be part of a package with other speed management measures including
engineering.

If it is set unrealistically low .... It may be ineffective....

The full range of speed management measures should always be considered before a new
speed limit is introduced.

Mean speeds should be used as the basis for determining local speed limits.

In response to:-
Question 1,
This question assumes compliance and relevant guidance on how best this can be achieved

is provided in the current DfT guidance. Whilst in principle Police support the introduction of
20 mph speed restrictions where the combination of environment and engineering

BBISHOP Report F’aﬂye[\tj)eZilg 23/07/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

measures deliver an acceptable level of compliance, we have some concerns that signs and
road markings alone may not be effective at all locations. This risks demand for a level of
Police speed enforcement activity, sufficient to achieve compliance, that is not practical to
achieve. DfT Guidance states:- ".... General compliance needs to be achievable without an
excessive reliance on enforcement”. "... there should be no expectation on the Police to
provide additional enforcement beyond their routine activity, unless this has been explicitly
agreed".

Question 2,

Police support the introduction of a 20 mph speed restriction at locations where evidence is
available to demonstrate the suitability of a site, in line with current DfT guidance. Which in
part suggests:-".... Where means speeds are already at or below 24 mph."

The appearance of a road is an important factor particularly where the effectiveness of a 20
mph speed restriction is reliant on signs and road markings alone, for example at Maids
Causeway, Cambridge, where mean speeds within an existing (signs and road markings) 20
mph speed restriction area have recently been recorded at up to 28 mph with non
compliance and offending rates of 41.3%.

Police note DfT guidance mentions Portsmouth, where average speeds of 25 mph or higher
were present before the introduction of a 20 mph speed restriction and the subsequent
reduction in speed once the new lower restrictions where introduced were insufficient to
make speeds generally compliant. Bearing this in mind, the results of your traffic surveys
and our surveys at fewer sites, would suggest the introduction of a 20 mph speed restriction,
by signs and road markings alone may not be effective at some locations coloured blue on
the plan.(i.e. those were mean speeds above 24 mph have been recorded)

Question 3,

The roads marked with a red and white coloured dotted line on the consultation plan vary in
their appearance, with some benefitting from traffic calming measures. Some of the roads
currently being considered for inclusion within this project, i.e. Kings Hedges Road, Arbury
Road, Gilbert Road have a very similar appearance to some of the "A" and "B" class roads
that form part of the highway network in this part of the city but have been excluded from the
project on the basis that "these roads are not currently suited to 20 mph". Other than being
the responsibility of Cambridgeshire County Council, if the "A" and "B" class roads are not
suited to a 20 mph speed restriction then what justification is there to introduce a 20 mph
speed restriction on roads which are similar in appearance and upon which speeds of up to
93 mph (Gilbert Road) have recently been recorded as part of our joint traffic survey work?

Where mean speeds above 24 mph were recorded, then in the absence of engineering
measures to improve compliance, Police question the introduction of a 20 mph speed
restriction at Arbury Road, Gilbert Road or Kings Hedges Road which are likely to require
significant levels of Police speed enforcement to achieve compliance.

Clearly if and until this project is implemented its success will be difficult to precisely predict.
Whilst there are benefits allied to the introduction of a 20 mph speed restriction Police have
concerns about the level of speed enforcement that may be necessary to achieve
compliance.

If following the consultation process the scheme proceeds to the implementation stage,
please can consideration be given to the use of an experimental Traffic Regulation Order?
This would allow the scheme to be implemented and for its effectiveness to be monitored for
up to 18 months before a final decision is made on whether to make the Traffic Regulation
Order permanent or not, as well as what if any additional engineering measures may be
required to help deliver a successful scheme.

BBISHOP Repor‘[j:’aaaeeNji:f@ 23/07/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Finally, excess speed will generally be a feature on most roads. Using data obtained from
our recent comparative surveys at a limited number of roads within Cambridge the results

suggest that if a 20 mph speed restriction without additional measures is introduced, some
locations are likely to experience a level of offending that would be a serious concern and

likely to remain so regardless of Police speed enforcement.

Yours Sincerely

S.K.Chessum
pp. Chief Inspector Richard Hann

Head of the collaborated Bedfordshire, Cambridgeshire and Hertfordshire Road Policing
Unit

Joint Protective Services

Letchworth Police Station

Nevells Road

Letchworth Garden City

Hertfordshire

SG6 4TS

01438 757717

BBISHOP Report Paﬂyd\@eZi_Zl 23/07/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Appendix E — Consultation Response Letter from CTC

right to ride network

working for oycling
Cambridge City Council Please reply to:

Environment and Planning !
Policy and Projects Division. Mr Rupert Goodings
FREEPOST ANG 6350 CTC Representative
The Guildhall c/o 2, The Willows; Camside
: ] Cambndge
Cambridge; CB2 3YA CB4 1NA
Sent by email to: Tel: 01223 851549
email: rg-ctc@ecotel demon_co.uk

1 July 2013
Dear Sirs,

Cambridge City-Wide 20mph Speed Limit — North Phase
(public consultation; May 2013)

| am writing as the Cyclists’ Touring Club Representative for Cambridge City and
Cambndgeshire.

| wish to express my strong support for the early and complete introduction of the proposed city-
wide 20 mph limit in Cambridge City. As the consultation for this first phase recoanises, the
introduction of 20 mph limits is strongly supported by CTC and other cycling organisations.
Lower vehicle speeds are one of the best ways to improve road safety for both cyelists and
pedestrians and thus to encourage more people to cycle and to walk.

| am particularly pleased that Cambridge are proposing to introduce a city wide scheme with the
eventual objective that all the city streets, excluding a few A and B roads, benefit from the 20
mph limit. Given that Cambridge City has the highest cycling modal share in the country (by far)
| think this introduction of city-wide 20 mph speed limits is somewhat overdue. Many other UK
cities have already introduced 20 mph limits and are already reaping the benefits in higher levels
of cycling and walking and in less severe accidents.

| note that the consultation invites specific comments on the proposal to include some C-roads in
the scheme where traffic volumes are higher and often where vehicle speeds are higher. | think
all of these roads should be included: | support the widest possible application of 20 mph limits
and | think that as many roads as possible should be included. In particular, all of the following
roads that are highlighted in this first consultation should be included: Chesterton High Street;
Green End Road; Arbury Road; Gilbert Road and Kings Hedges Road. | would prefer that the
scheme was more extensive; specifically, | think that Victoria Road is wrongly omitted and
should be included in the North Phase.

In each case, | think there are strong reasons for all these roads to be included as | detail below.

Chesterton High Street: There are high levels of cycle and pedestrian traffic on this road. The
pedestrian desire lines cross the road at many different places to access homes and shops.
This area also has a higher than average percentage of elderly residents, who often struggle to

Right to Ride is CTC's volunteer campaign network — working for all cyclists at the local level.

Founded 1878
CTC - the UK's national cyclists’ isation provides 3 compr range of z advice, events and protection for its members.
CTC Chantable Trust, CTC's charity arm, mbpmmwdlngbyvzy\gpﬂcandpdmalnmssoﬂﬁmh social and Patron: Her Majesty the Quesn

environmental benefits. and by working with all communities to help reafise those benefits. President: Jon Snow

BBISHOP Repor}j’aqg%Ni:z’Zﬁ 23/07/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Cambridgeshire Cyclists' Touring Club — Right to Ride Network

cross the road due to the high traffic volume and the high speeds. Sadly, the existing speed
humps and the controlled crossings have not reduced the vehicle speeds enough. | think it is
essential that this road is included in the scheme.

Green End Road: Again there are high levels of cycle and pedestrian traffic with both school and
residential needs. There Is a lot of commuter cycling on this road, with a sharp peak in cycle
movements at rush hour. There is a specific problem with large vehicles using the section
between Nuffield Road and Milton Road and there may be a need to consider some additional
measures to curb speeds in this short section. | think it is essential that this road is included in
the scheme.

Arbury Road: This road is currently a relatively hostile environment for cyclists, and | believe this
leads to lower levels of cycling. 1 think it likely that there is suppressed demand from cyclists on
this road, particularly on the southern section. The high traffic volumes, combined with parked
cars and the narrow roadway means that this will remain a relatively hastile environment far
cyclists. However, the combination of schools and residential use means that this road must
also be included in the scheme.

Gilbert Road: The recent new cycle lanes are a good improvement for cyclists, but the removal
of the parked cars has led to higher vehicle speeds (as was predicted at the time). The result is
an environment that is still too hostile for cyclists. Given the large number of schools and the
residential needs, and it clear that lower vehicle speeds are needed and hence it is important
that this road is included in the 20 mph limit. But | also think that some new speed reduction
measures may also be needed to achieve the wanted speed reduction (see below). | note that
some speed reduction measures were proposed when the new cycle lanes were being built, and
| sugaest the expected lack of enforcement means that these measures are now needed. But
even without these additional measures, | think this road should be included in the scheme.

Kings Hedges Road: This is currently a hostile environment for cyclists, and | believe this is part
of the reason for the current low levels use by cyclists and pedestrians. | again support the
introduction of the 20 mph limit here, even though | suspect that 20 mph limit may only have
limited impact on actual vehicle speeds unless additional speed reduction measures are
infroduced (see below).

Victoria Road: This road is currently a relatively hostile environment for cyclists due to narrow
lanes and high volume of traffic. | believe this leads to lower levels of cycling: i.e. there is
suppressed demand from cyclists. The high traffic volumes and the narrow roadway means that
this will remain a relatively hostile environment for cyclists. But | am disappointed that this road
iz not included in the proposed scheme.

Maost of these itemised roads have higher average vehicle numbers. More important, | think the
average vehicle speeds conceal a more serious problem. In my experience, a significant
minority of vehicles dnve recklessly at dangerous speeds, with some exceeding the existing 30
mph speed limits. For this reason, | would like to see the widest possible adoption of 20 mph
limits, to reduce this temptation for excessive speeds when the roads are quieter.

| specifically wish to oppose any suggestion that some of these itemised roads should be
excluded from the 20 mph limits due to the difficulties of relying on “self enforcement” of the
lower speed limit. This concern is reflection of the publicly stated policy of the Police that “20
mph speed limits should be self enforcing”. | oppose this for two reasons. First, | argue that
even a modest reduction in speeds would be desirable, and there is evidence from previous
schemes that 20 mph speed limits are more effective in reducing vehicle speeds when they are
applied widely and consistently. Second, | argue that the correct response to the challenge of
“self-enforcement” is to install additional speed reduction measures on any of the roads where

Page 2

Page 123



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Cambridgeshire Cyclists' Touring Club — Right to Ride Network

average speeds remain above 20 mph. | have suggested that these may be needed on both
Gilbert Road and on King Hedges Road.

In summary, | welcome this introduction of City-wide 20 mph speed limits in Cambridge with the
20 mph limit being applied to as many city roads as possible. | would strongly ask that all of the
itemised and proposed roads are included in the Phase 1 scheme. | would also hope that you

will proceed with the subsequent phases as quickly as possible. CTC, along with the majority of

cyclists and pedestrians, would like this change to be implemented as widely as possible and as
s00Nn as possible.

Yours faithfully

Rupert Goodings.

Page 3

BBISHOP Repor’[j:’aqa%Nf:z’ig 23/07/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

Appendix F — Summary Charts illustrating respondent’s main
reason for using the Cambridge Road network

(a) Overall

Please tick the box which best describes your main reason for
using the roads in Cambridge

0 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000

Resident # 3924(92%
Commuter 112 (3%

Shopping | 24 (<1%)
Leisure/Tourism | 15 (<1%)
School Run | 13 (<1%)

Visiting Friends/Family | 12 (<1%)

Other 145 (3%

(b) From inside the consultation area

Please tick the box which best describes your main reason for
using the roads in Cambridge

0 1000 2000 3000 4000

Resident #
Commuter [58(1%)

Shopping | 12 (<1%)

Leisure/Tourism | 6 (<1%)
School Run | 9 (<1%)

Visiting Friends/Family | 5 (<1%)

Other 176 (2%)

BBISHOP Report Pagye[\@'e3125 23/07/2013



20mph Project Regulatory Committee Report - NAC (Phase 1 Post Cons) Final

(c) From outside the consultation area

Please tick the box which best describes your main reason
for using the roads in Cambridge

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

Resident

240 (61%
Commuter 54 (14%)
Shopping 6)
Leisure/Tourism

School Run

Visiting Friends/Family

Other 69 (17%)

BBISHOP Repor}j:’ég%Ni%

23/07/2013



	Agenda
	3 TO CONFIRM WHAT WAS SAID (MINUTES) AT THE LAST MEETING AND WHAT WE HAVE DONE (ACTION LIST)
	130516  COMMITTEE ACTION SHEET NAC

	5 Developer Contributions and Devolved Decision Making - first round priority-setting for Play Area Improvement
	6 Proposed Capital Grant to the Sikh Gurdwara in Kings Hedges
	7 Environmental Improvement Programme
	8 Cambridge 20mph Project - Phase 1 Consultation Report

